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December 22,2010 

County Board of Supervisors and Citizens 
Cerro Gordo County, Iowa 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the County of Cerro Gordo, Iowa (the "County") 
for the fiscal year ended June 30,2010, is hereby submitted in accordance with the provisions of Section 
331.403 of the Code of Iowa. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the County. Consequently, 
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the infomation 
presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the 
County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the 
government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the 
preparation of the County's financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County's 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert 
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material 
respects. 

The County's fmancial statements have been audited by Gardiner Thomsen PC, a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30,2010 are free of material misstatement. The 
independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor issued an 
unqualified opinion on the County's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,2010, indicating 
that they are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the 
first component of the financial section of this report. 

The independent audit of the fmancial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally mandated 
"Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing 
Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the 
financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and compliance with legal 
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration 
of federal awards. These reports are available in the County's separately issued Single Audit Report. 



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the 
basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of 
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County's 
MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of Cerro Gordo County 

Organized in 1855, Cerro Gordo County is governed by a three-member board, each elected by citizens in 
one of the three districts. Board members serve overlapping four-year terms, with elections held every two 
years. The Board is the legislative body of the County, which annually adopts a budget and establishes tax 
rates to support County programs. 

The County provides a full range of services to its citizens. These services include public safety, parks, 
planning and zoning, service to people with mental disabilities, construction and maintenance of secondary 
roads, physical health and social services, property assessment and taxation, and general administrative 
services. The County also provides a management information services department utilized by other 
governmental entities. 

The Board of Supervisors is required to adopt a final budget by no later than March 15" for the fiscal year 
beginning the following July 1''. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the County's financial 
planning and control. The State of Iowa requires the adoption of an annual budget with total County 
operating expenditures listed by major program service area. Activities of the general fund, special revenue 
funds, capital projects funds, and debt service fund are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level 
of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) 
is at the total functionlprogram service area level. In addition, individual County officials' expenditures 
cannot exceed the amounts appropriated by the Board. 

Local Economy 

Cerro Gordo County, with the Cities of Mason City, Clear Lake, and eight smaller cities, has the thirteenth 
largest population of ninety-nine counties in the state, and serves as a regional center for north central Iowa 
in the areas of commerce, industry, retail shopping, higher education, and health care services. The 
surrounding area has an economic base that is historically agricultural in nature, but Cerro Gordo County 
also has several strong industries and commercial enterprises. With a usually low rate of unemployment and 
the lack of a single, dominant employer, the economy of the area is generally dynamic, robust, and hroad- 
based. The City of Mason City is the largest city in Cerro Gordo County, with about two-thirds of the 
County's 46,000 population. 

Tourism is an important industry in Cerro Gordo County, largely due to Clear Lake, which, at 3,865 acres, is 
the third largest natural lake in Iowa, and is the namesake of the surrounding city. The County and ranks 
eleventh in the state for tourism expenditures. 

Although educational systems in the entire north central Iowa area are well known for their quality of 
education, Cerro Gordo County has become a regional center for higher learning. Drake University of Des 
Moines offers several programs at the Masters level in coordination with the North Iowa Area Community 



College VIACC). This adds to the wide range of baccalaureate programs offered at NIACC by Buena Vista 
College of Storm Lake, and Kaplan University, which offers AAS and BA degrees. 

Cerro Gordo County serves as a regional hub for transportation with an airport, three railroad branch lines, 
Interstate 35, which runs north-south the length of the County, and the "Avenue of the Saints", the link 
between Interstates 35 and 80. 

The County is a regional center for health care services. The City of Mason City has the third highest 
number of physicians per capita in the State, trailing only the Cities of Des Moines and Iowa City. Mercy 
Medical Center - North Iowa is the County's largest employer with two facilities and with affiliated clinics 
and hospitals in a 14-county region. 

With high grain prices the agricultural economy of the area has been strong and stable; however, the national 
recession affected local industries and businesses during the fiscal year. After operating continuously since 
1908, Holc~m Cement closed its doors on August 31, 2009, putting 165 employees out of work. The 
company described the decision as "mothballing" the plant, in hopes of reopening within two years. One 
bright spot was the announcement In August 2009 that Titan Pro SCI would build a new 76,600 square foot 
building in the Clear Lake Industrial Park. Titan Pro is a seed, chemical, and crop insurance company, and 
will be investing $3.5 million in the new facility, which is expected to create 21 full-t~me and 12 part-time 
new jobs. 

In general economic news for the fiscal year, the number of persons employed in the county went from 
24,540 to 24,250, a decrease of 1.2% from December 2008 to December 2009, according to figures from 
Iowa Workforce Development. 

The City of Mason City's cost of living for the second quarter of 2009 was 87.5% of the national average, 
according to the ACCRA Cost of Living Index, ranking it the lowest cost of living for all Iowa communities 
that participate in the ACCRA index. 

Major Initiatives 

In July 2009 the County issued for general release to other counties a new computer software program, "The 
Precinct Atlas". The program was developed by the MIS programming staff and used for the first time at a 
special election for the Mason City Community School District in February, 2009. The County reached a 
verbal agreement with the Iowa Secretary of State to offer the program at no cost to all counties in the state. 
By the June 2010 Primary Election, forty-six counties, in addition to Cerro Gordo, had used the program in 
one or more precincts. 

In April of 2010 the County received an offer to buy the former jail annex property. The County purchased 
the property in 1997 and converted it to a minimum security jail in 1999. It has been vacant since the law 
enforcement center opened in February 2008. The County held a public hearing and agreed to sell the south 
two-and-a-half lots for $175,000, and to keep the north one-and-a-half lots for parking. 

During the fiscal year the County investigated a sanitary sewer project for the unincorporated town of 
Portland, with possible use of some federal and state grant funds, in addition to individual property 
assessments. The County contracted with Yaggy Colby Associates for preliminary engineering design work 
on the project, but officially abandoned the project after the preliminruy cost estimates exceeded the cost of 
individual systems for the majority of property owners. 



Long-Term Financial Planning 

The County is continuing to develop strategies for improving service, quality and efficiency. The Board 
utilizes a long term fiscal policy and continues its strategic planning process. The County's secondary road 
system is also being continually reviewed. The County Engineer has developed a long-range five-year plan 
addressing how much additional funding will be required to maintain the quality of the County's roads and 
bridges. 

Relevant Financial Policies 

It is Cerro Gordo County's policy to use its share of local option sales and service taxes in the following 
allocation: 

General Fund, 10% 

\ Rural Cnuntv 
Secondary Road 

Fund, 55% 

General Caunty 
Bettermnt, 10% 

Econonic 
Developmnt, 5% 

In FY2010, Cerro Gordo County received a total of $1,424,656 in local option sales and service taxes. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Cerro Gordo County, Iowa for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30,2009. This was the fourteenth 
consecutive year that the govemment has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a govemment must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current 
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's 
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 



The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis could not have been 
completed without the cooperation and services of the staffs of the County Auditor's and Treasurer's offices. 
Gratitude is also expressed to the independent auditors, Gardier Thomsen, who provided endless support 
and assistance in preparing this report, and to the Cerro Gordo County Board of Supervisors for their interest 
and support. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Heather R. Mathre, CPA 
Budget Manager 
Office of the County Auditor 
Cerro Gordo County, Iowa 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Officials of Ceno Gordo County 
Mason Clty, Iowa 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Cerro Gordo County, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively 
comprise the County's basic financial statements listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Ccrro 
Gordo County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with U S .  generally accepted auditing standards, and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditino Standards. issued hv the Com~troller General of the United States. Those standards reouire that we - 
plan and perfom the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fiee of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

Ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective fmancial position of the 
governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informalion of Cemo Gordo County 
at June 30,2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22, 2010 on our consideration of 
Ccrro Gordo County's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should he considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis, Budgetary Comparison Lnformation and Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Health 
Plan on paws 10 through 19 and 49 through 52 are not required parts of the basic iinancial statemcnts, but are supplementarv . . 
informati~n;equired by the Govemmental ~c ioun t i ng  standard; Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. We 
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the iinancial statements that collectively comprise Cerro Gordo 
County's basic financial statements. We previously audited, in accordance with the standards referred to in the second paragraph of this 
report, the financial statements for the ten years ended June 30,2009 (which are not presented herein) and expressed unqualified opinions 
on those fmancial statements. The combining and nonmajor fund financial statements and other schedules, listed in the table of contents 
as supplementary information, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statemcnts. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in 
our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statemcnts taken as a whole. 

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been compiled from County records by County 
personnel, has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on them. 

December 22,2010 

9 

P.O. Box 216 Charles City, IA 50616-0216 #Phone: (641) 228-7096 -Fax: (641) 228-7103 -www.gardinercpa.com 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Cerro Gordo County provides this Management's Discussion and Analysis of its financial statements. This 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities is for the fiscal year ended June 30,2010. We 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information 
presented in the transmittal letter beginning on page 4, and the County's fmancial statements, which follow 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

+ Cerro Gordo County governmental fimd revenues increased 0.5% or $150,289 from $31,473,714 in 
fiscal year 2009 (FY09) to $31,624,003 in fiscal year 2010 (FY 10). Property taxes and other county 
taxes increased $378,340, intergovernmental revenue decreased $733,525, charges for services increased 
$75,723, use of money and property revenues decreased $127,693, and miscellaneous revenue increased 
$539,380 from FY09. 

+ Cerro Gordo County governmental fund expenditures for FY 10 were $32,493,409, an increase of 
$1,908,708 from $30,584,701 in FY09. This was primarily contributable to a $1,797,523 increase in 
capital projects due to the community development block grant funds that pass-through the county for 
projects relating to the flood of June 2008 

+ The assets of the county exceeded liabilities at fiscal year ended June 30,201 0 by $43,78 1,66 1 (net 
assets). Of this amount, $5,265,374 is unrestricted and may be used to meet the County's ongoing 
obligations. For fiscal year ended June 30,2009, assets exceeded liabilities by $43,334,675, of which 
$5,220,057 was unrestricted 

+ Cerro Gordo County's net assets increased 1.0% or approximately $446,986 at June 30, 2010. 
Government activities increased $513,691 and business-type activities decreased by $66,705. For fiscal 
year ended June 30,2009, total net assets increased $3,365,183. Governmental activities increased 
$3,43 1,737 and business-type activities decreased $66,554. 

+ Cerro Gordo County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $13,573,820, a 
decrease of $279,060 in comparison with the FY09 fund balances of $13,852,880. Approximately 
89.4% of the total amount, $12,130,331, is available for spending at the County's discretion (unreserved 
fund balance). 

+ Cerro Gordo County's general long-term debt, excluding compensated absences and claims payable, 
increased $678,268 during the fiscal year, from $12,667,623 in FY09 to $11,989,355 in FY10. This 
change was due to scheduled payments of $867,697 during FYlO and the issuance of $168,750 in 
revenue bonds and $20,679 lease obligations. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information, as follows: 

Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an 
analytical overview of the government's financial activities. 

The Government-wide Financial Statements consist of the Statements of Net Assets and the Statement 
of Activities (on pages 20-22). These provide information about the activities of the County as a whole 
and present a longer-tern view of the County's finances. 



The Fund Financial Statements (starting on page 23) tell how government services were financed in the 
short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report Cerro Gordo 
County's operations in more detail than the govemment-wide statements by providing information about 
the most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for 
which Cerro Gordo County acts solely as an agent or custodian for the benefit of those outside of the 
government. 

The Financial Statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and 
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary 
information that further explains and supports the financial statements with a comparison of the 
County's budget for the year. 

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the basic financial statements. 

Supplemental Information provides detailed information about the nonmajor special revenue and the 
individual fiduciary funds. 

Reporting the County as a Whole 

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

One of the most important questions asked about the County's finances is, "Is the County as a whole better off 
or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 
report information about activities in a way the helps answer this question. These statements include all assets 
and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus. This is 
similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and 
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the County's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the 
two reported as "net assets". Over time, increases or decreases in the County's net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the County's net assets changed during the fiscal 
year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the event or change occurs, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result 
in cash flows until future fiscal periods. 

The County's governmental activities are displayed in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities. Governmental activities include public safety and legal s e ~ c e s ,  physical health and social services, 
mental health, county environment and education, roads and transportation, government services to residents, 
administration or general government, interest on long-term debt, and other non-program activities. Property 
taxes and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements begin on page 23 and provide detailed information about individual, significant 
funds; not the County as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by Iowa law or by bond covenants. 
However, the County establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes. 



Cerro Gordo County has three kinds of funds: 

1) Governmental funds account for most of the County's basic services, which focus on how money 
flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These 
governmental funds include 1) General Fund, 2) Special Revenue Funds, 3) Debt Service Fund, and 4) Capital 
Projects Fund. These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash 
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The government fund statements provide a 
detailed short-term view of the Co~nty's'~enera1 governmental operations and the basic service it provides. 
Governmental h n d  information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that 
can be spent in the near future to finance the County's programs. 

The governmental funds required financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances. 

2) Cerro Gordo County maintains two types of proprietary funds: internal service funds and enterprise 
funds. 

a) Cerro Gordo County has two internal service funds: Central Services Fund and Health 
Insurance Fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and 
allocate costs internally among the County's various functions. 

b) Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to a private business. Cerro Gordo County maintains two enterprise funds: 
Meservey Wastewater Collection & Treatment Facility and Swaledale Wastewater 
Collection & Treatment Facility. 

The proprietary funds required financial statements include a statement of net assets, a statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in find net assets, and a statement of cash flows. 

3) Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trust or agency capacity for others and cannot be 
used to support the government's own programs. These fiduciary h d s  include agency funds that 
account for emergency management, county assessor, and city assessor to name a few. 

The fiduciary h d s  required financial statements include a statement of fiduciruy assets and liabilities. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found beginning on page 33. 

Supplemental Information 

The supplemental information begins on page 53 and provides detailed information about the non-major 
governmental funds and the individual fiduciary funds. In addition, the Single Audit Section provides details of 
the various Federal awards received by the County. 



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. Cerro 
Gordo County's net assets increased $446,986 from $43,334,675 to $43,781,661. The analysis below focuses on 
the net assets and changes in net assets of our government and business-type activities. 

Cerro Gordo County's Net Assets 
June 30,2010 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Current and other assets $31,335,092 $3 1,037.652 $94,090 $83,936 $31,429,182 $31,121,588 
Capital assets 41,575,920 40,589,345 1,982,538 2,067,826 43,558,458 42,657,171 
Total assets 72,911,012 71,626.997 2,076,628 2,151,762 74,987,640 73,778,759 

Long-term debt 
outstanding 11,981,085 12,093,235 557,967 567,947 12,539,052 12,661,182 
Other liabilities 18,655,159 17,772,685 11,768 10,217 18,666,927 17,782,902 
Total liabilities 30,636,244 29,865,920 569,735 578,164 31,205,979 30,444,084 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 29,988,315 28,174,721 1,414,592 1,490,330 3 1,402,907 29,665,05 1 
Restricted 7,113,380 8,449,567 0 0 7,113,380 8,449,567 
Unrestricted 5,173,073 5,136,789 92,301 83,268 5,265,374 5,220,057 

Total net assets $42,274,768 $41,761,077 $1,506,893 $1,573,598 $43,781,661 $43,334,675 

The largest portion of the County's net assets, 71.7%, is the Invested in Capital Assets (e.g., land, infrastructure, 
buildings, and equipment), less the related debt. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to 
citizens, therefore, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must 
be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be liquidated to cover the liabilities. 

A restricted portion of the County's net assets, 16.3% or $7,113,380, represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions, constitution provisions, or enabling legislation on how they can be used. The remaining 
balance of unrestricted net assets - the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations 
without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements - is 
$5,265,374 or 12.0%. 

The County's net assets increased by $446,986 during the current fiscal year. The governmental-type activities 
increased by $5 13,691 and the business-type activities decreased $66,705. 

The following table highlights the County's revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30,2010 and 
2009. These two main components are subtracted to yield the change in net assets. This table utilizes the full 
accrual method of accounting. Revenue is further divided into two major components: Program Revenue and 
General Revenue. Program Revenue is defined as charges for services and sales and services, operating grants 
and contributions and capital grants and contributions. General Revenue includes taxes, investment income and 
other unrestricted revenue sources. 



Cerro Gordo County's Changes in Net Assets 
June 30.2010 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for service and sales 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General Revenues 
Property taxes 
Penalty & interest on property tax 
State tax credits 
Local option sales & service tax 
Grants and contributions not 

restricted to specific purposes 

Governmental 
Activities 

2010 2009 

Unrestricted investment eamlngs 134,595 282,175 
Miscellaneous 881,215 946,968 

Total revenues 33,526,190 34,407,329 

Expenses: 
Public safety and legal services 
Physical health and social sewices 
Mental health 
County environment and education 
Roads and transportation 
Government services to residents 
Administration or general government 
Non-program 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 391,561 3,431,737 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2010 2009 
Total 

2010 2009 

Net assets July 1, as restated 41,883,207 38,329,340 1,573,598 1,640,152 43,456,805 39,969,492 

Net assets June 30, 42,274,768 41,761,077 1,506,893 1,573,598 43,781,661 43,334,675 

Revenues by Type 
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Governmental Activities 
Revenues for governmental activities decreased 2.6% or $881,139 over the prior year. The County's operating 
grants and contributions decreased $2,596,146 due to a reduction of the mental health grants received from the 
State in FYIO. Capital grants and contributions had the largest increase of $1,397,568 over the prior year's 
amount of $3,974,119. This was due to the community development block grant funds that pass-through the 
county for projects relating to the flood of June 2008. Property tax revenues increased $490,858 due to an 
increase in the taxable value in the county. Unrestricted investment earnings decreased $147,580 due to lower 
investment rate of return. 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $33,134,629, an increase of $2,159,037 over the prior years' 
$30,975,592. However, as shown in the Statement of Activities on page 21-22, the amount the taxpayers 
ultimately financed for these activities through County taxes was only $16,991,257 because some of the cost was 
paid by those that directly benefited from the programs, or by other governments and organizations that 
subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions. 

Physical health and social service expenses decreased $384,203 due to the reduction of the empowerment 
program expenses. County environment and education saw a decrease of $346,534 from the previous year. This 
was due to the large expenses for the CLEAR project that occurred in FY09. Roads and Transportation increased 
$527,599 due to several large purchases of granular. Administration expenses were $753,654 higher than the 
prior year due to CLEAR project expenses and financial support given to the health insurance fund. 
Nonprogram services increased $1,483,559 in the current year from the pass-through community development 
block grant funds for projects relating to the flood of June 2008. 

Cerro Gordo County decreased the rural rate of 3.5 1050 for FY09 to 3.50739 for FY10. The countywide tax rate 
of 6.32224 for FY09 decreased to 6.29147 for FYIO. The combined tax rates resulted in increased property tax 
dollars of approximately $444,500 for general purposes and $54,600 for rural purposes, and a decrease of $1,300 
for debt service and $7,000 for mental health services. 

Business-Type Activities 

Business-type activities decreased the County's net assets by $66,705. 

The County's Individual Major Funds 

As Cerro Gordo County completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$13,573,820, which is a decrease of $279,060 or 2.0% over the combined fund balance for FY09. Of this 
amount, $12,130,331 represents the unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the 
government's discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for 
new spending because it has already been committed. The following are the major reasons for the changes in 
fund balances from the prior year: 

4 The General Fund, as the main operating fund for Cerro Gordo County, ended FYlO with a 52% ending 
fund balance totaling $6,062,480. This is a $316,287 increase from the prior year's $5,749,193 fund 
balance. The key factor for the increase was an additional $435,426 in property and other county taxes. 
Overall, expenditures saw little growth. Expenditures increased $217,882 over the ten service areas, 
which is only in increase of 1.9% from the previous year. 

4 Cerro Gordo County has continued to look for ways to effectively manage the cost of mental health 
services. The Mental Health Fund balance decreased from $919,664 to ($20,262) in FY 10, a decrease of 



$939,926. For the year, expenditures totaled $5,941,119, an increase of 2.4% over last year's 
expenditures of $5,802,641. Revenues decreased $1,969,048 due to the reduction of State funding 

+ The Rural Services Fund had a fund balance that increased $91,780 to $940,588 from the prior year 
ending balance of $848,808, a result of the additional property and other county taxes received. 
Revenues increased $49,393, Erom $2,083,391 in FY09 to $2,132,784 in FYIO. Expenditures totaled 
$441,004, an increase of $129,105, or 41.4% over last year's expenditures of $31 1,899. The County 
supports the county libraries with an annual allocation. In FY 10, this allocation of $178,680 came 
entirely from the nual services fund, rather than split between the rural services fund ($39,441 from 
FY09) and the rural county betterment fund. 

+ The Secondaty Roads Fund expenditures increased by $198,189 or 3.4%, from $5,777,005 in FY09 to 
$5,975,194 in FY 10. This was due to an increase in granular purchases in FY 10 as the County continues 
to maintain the condition of the County roadway system. The Secondary Road Fund balance increased 
$410,323, from $3,950,312 in FY09 to $4,360,635 in FYIO. 

+ The Public Health Fund ended FYlO with an $893,266 fund balance, a $171,541 increase over the prior 
year's balance of $721,725. Expenditures decreased $79,337, or 2.6% over the prior year. Revenues 
increased 11.2%, or $189,795 from additional intergovernmental revenues and from additional fees 
received for charges for services. 

+ The Debt Service Fund had a fund balance of $26,643, all of which is reserved for the payment of debt. 

+ The Capital Projects fund balance was $933 at June 30,2010. This is a decrease of $338,715 from the 
prior year fund balance of $339,648 due to the depletion of funds of two capital projects, the law 
enforcement complex project and the on-site sewage bonding project. 

Budgetary Highlights 

The county budget is based on ten functionsise~ice areas as required by the State, not by hnd or fund type. 
Over the course of the year, Cerro Gordo County amended its budget one time. The budgetary comparison 
schedule on pages 49-50 provide more information. The amendment, made May 2010, resulted in the following: 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources increased $3,081,060, which included: 

+ Decrease of $49,360 in local option sales and service tax and utility excise tax. 

+ A $2,839,792 increase in intergovernmental revenues by various departments, including an increase of 
$1,500,000 for Flood CDBG, $941,400 for secondary roads and transportation, and $231,431 for the 
public health department. 

+ Additional $18,500 in licenses and permits for planning and zoning permits and public health fees. 

+ Charges for services increased $28,931, due to an increase in public health of $10,281, $5,500 for 
planning and zoning services, and $13,150 for fees provided by the sheriff department. 

+ Decrease of $160,000 in use of money & property due to less interest revenue earned than budgeted 

+ Miscellaneous revenue increased $174,411 due to several departments receiving additional 
miscellaneous revenue, with the public health, $68,311, and the sheriff department, $72,000, receiving 
the largest shares. 



+ Other Financing Sources of $228,786 includes $190,00Ofrom the sale of county assets and a $38,786 
transfer to public health. 

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses increased $3,371,409, which included: 

+ Decrease of $258,400 in public safety and legal services, including a decrease of $255,000 for the 
Sheriff department. 

+ Increase of $148,929 in physical health and education. This includes a decrease of $35,000 for the 
Court Services department, and in increase of $191,429 for the public health department. 

+ Additional $162,500 in county environment & education. $171,500 of the total was for additional 
county grants. 

+ An increase of $600,000 in the roads & transportation service area, all for the Secondary Roads 
department. 

+ An increase of $28,000 for government services to residents. 

4 An increase of $327,200 in administration. $350,000 of this increase was due to a supplement from the 
general basic fund to the county health insurance fund. 

+ An increase of $15,000 for the nonprogram current service area for drainage ditches 

+ Increase in capital projects of $2,309,394. $1,500,000 for the flood CDBG, $500,000 for secondary 
road construction projects, and $325,364 for the reallocation of the remaining funds left from the law 
enforcement complex project. 

During the year, however, revenues were $2,695,438 less than budgetary revenues and expenditures were 
$4,653,652 less than budgetary expenditures. Iowa law requires budget amendments to specific expenditure 
functionslservice areas, i.e., public safety and legal service, to be enacted by the Board of Supervisors no later 
than May 3 1 of each fiscal year. Since the County's fiscal year ends on June 30 and since the County's budget is 
based on the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, the 
Board takes a conservative approach when enacting yearend budget amendments. This means the comparison of 
actual to budgeted amounts will usually show expenditures to be well below budgeted amounts. This is 
especially true for the Capital Projects and Roads and Transportation service areas when projects may roll over 
to a subsequent fiscal year. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMLNISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

Cerro Gordo County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 
30,2010 was $71,387,101, an increase of $2,972,501 or 4.3% compared to FY09. This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery & equipment, vehicles, 
intangibles, and infrastructure. 

Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included infrastructure, vehicles for Sheriff and 
Secondary Roads and the new in-house developed software, Precinct Atlas, designed for elections. 



Cerro Gordo County's Capital Assets 
FYE 2010 

Land 
Consbuction-in-Process 
Buildings 
Improvements other than 
Buildings 
Machinery & Equipment 
Vehicles 
Intangibles 
Infiastmcture 

Total 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

Less: Accumulated 
Depreciation 27,042,238 24,934,181 786,405 701,119 27,828,643 25,635,298 

Total 41,575,920 40,711,476 1,982,538 2,067,824 43,558,458 42,657,171 

For governmental activities, Cerro Gordo County had depreciation expense of $2,547,03 1 and total accumulated 
depreciation of $27,042,238 for the year ended June 30,2010. For business-type activities, depreciation expense 
was $85,286 and total accumulated depreciation was $786,405 for the year end. 
Additional information on Cerro Gordo County's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of this report. 

Debt 

As of June 30,2010, Cerro Gordo County had total long-term debt outstanding for governmental activities of 
$12,805,227, a decrease of $648,362 compared to FY09. Some of the major changes in debt resulted from the 
capital loan note retirement of $495,000 along with the issuance of $168,750 of revenue bonds, as well as 
$372,698 of installment and capital lease purchase agreements payments, and an additional lease obligation of 
$20,679. In the current year, the County paid $867,698 in principal and $517,888 in interest on outstanding 
debt, compared to $582,000 in principal and $528,250 in interest for FY09. 

Sewer revenue capital loan notes (Business-Type Activities) outstanding totaled $567,946. This is a decrease of 
$9,551 due to debt retirement. Business-Type Activities paid $9,551 in principal and $25,988 in interest on 
outstanding debt in the current year. 

The Code of Iowa limits the amount of general obligation debt that counties can issue to 5 percent of the 
assessed value of all taxable property within the county. Cerro Gordo County's outstanding general obligation 
debt is significantly below its limit of $184 million. 



Cerro Gordo County's Outstanding Debt 
June 30,2010 

Governmental Activities: 
Revenue Bonds & Capital Loan Notes $ 11,871,750 
Capital Lease Purchase Agreements 117,605 
Installment Purchase Agreements 0 
Drainage Warrants 34,700 
Termination Benefits 15,025 
Compensated Absences 766,147 736,444 
Total $ 12.8Q5J27 $ 13.453589 

Business-Type Activities: 
Sewer Revenue Bonds $ 567.946 $577.497 

Additional information about the County's long-term liabilities can be found in Note 7 to the financial 
statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARS'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Cerro Gordo County's elected and appointed officials and citizens considered many factors when setting the 
201 1 fiscal year budget, tax rates, and the fees that will be charged for the various County services. One of those 
factors is the economy. Cerro Gordo County's unemployment rate now stands at 7.32% versus 5.43% a year 
ago. This compares with the State unemployment rate of 6.7% and the national rate of 9.5%. 

t For the budget year ending June 30,201 1, Cerro Gordo County decreased the countywide tax rate from 
$6.30195 per thousand of taxable valuation to $6.27042 and maintained the rural county tax rate at 
$3.50739 per thousand of taxable valuation. This decrease in the countywide tax rate is due to a 
decrease in funds needed in the debt service fund and additional State funds allocated to mental health 
services. These additional h d s  directly reduce the property taxes. 

+ The tax base for Cerro Gordo County increased 1.3% over the prior year. 

t The total expenditures for the FY1 1 budget are $35,981,015, an increase of $2,433,217 from the FYlO 
budget. The main factor contributing to the increase is an additional $2,500,000 budgeted in capital 
projects for the pass through of grants athibutable to the flood of 2008. All four of the County 
bargaining unit contracts were under five year agreements that expired June 30, 2010. 

All these factors were considered in preparing the Cerro Gordo County budget for the June 30,201 1 fiscal year. 

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S HNANCLAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general 
overview of the County's finances and to demonstrate the accountability for the public dollars entrusted to us. If 
you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Cerro Gordo County Auditor's 
Office, 220 North Washington, Mason City, Iowa 50401. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
June 30,2010 

ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 
Succeeding year 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 
Accounts 
Accrued Interest 
Special Assessments 
Drainage Assessments 

Due From Other Governments 
Inventories 
Capital Assets: 

Land 
Construction in Progress 
Intangibles 
Other Capital Assets 

Less Accumulated Depreciation/Amo~tization 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 
Due to Other Governments 
Unearned Revenue: 

Succeeding Year Property Tax 
Long-Term Liabilities: 

Portion Due or Payable Within One Year: 
Capital Lease Purchase Agreements 
General Obligation Bondsmevenue Notes 
Compensated Absences 
Termination Benefits 

Portion Due or Payable After One Year: 
Capital Lease Purchase Agreements 
General Obligation Bondmevenue Notes 
Drainage District Warrants Payable 
Termination Benefits 
Net OPEB Liability 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Temporarily Restricted For: 

Non-Expendable: 
Strand Endowment 

Expendable: 
Mental Health Purposes 
Secondary Roads Purposes 
Debt Service 
Capital Projects 
Other Purposes 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30.2010 

P r o p  Revenues 

Operating Grants, Capital Grants, 
Contributions Contributions 

Charges for and Restricted and Restricted 
Expenses Service Interest Interest 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS: 
Governmental Activities: 

Public Safety and Legal Services $7,269,875 $921,982 $639,633 $0 
Physical Health and Social Services 4,726,961 649,560 2,326,314 0 
Mental Health 5,943,074 557,386 1,475,049 0 
County Environment and Education 1,329,604 78,204 50,270 0 
Roads and Transportation 7,061,925 58,176 2,905,116 3,224,774 
Governmental Services to Residents 969,501 694,326 445 0 
Administrative Services 2,920,542 187,016 0 0 
Non-Program 2,399,569 228,208 0 2,146,913 
Interest on Long Term Debt 513,578 0 0 0 

33,134,629 3,374,858 7,396,827 5,371,687 
Business-type Activities: 

Wastewater Collection and Treatment 133,970 67,217 0 0 

Total $33,268,599 $3,442,075 $7,396,827 $5,371,687 

GENERAL REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax Levied For: 

General Purposes 
Debt Service 

Penalty and Interest on Property Tax 
State Tax Credits, Unrestricted 
Local Option Sales and Service Tax 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets Beginning of Year, as restated 

Net Assets End of Year 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



Net (Exuense) Revenue . . 
and changes in Net Assets 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30,2010 

Special Revenue 

Assets 
Cash and Pooled Invesbnents 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 
Succeeding Year 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 
Accounts 
Acmed Interest 
Special Assessments 
Drainage Assessments 

Due From Other Funds 
Due From Other Governments 
Inventories 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 
Due To Other Funds 
Due To Other Governments 
Unearned Revenue: 

Succeeding Year Property Tax 
Other 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances 
Reserved For: 

Inventories 
Endowment 
Drainage W a m t s  
Trust 
Debt Service 

Unreserved, Reported In: 
General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Projects Fund 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Mental Rural Secondary 
General Health Services Roads Public Health 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Debt Capital 
Service Projects Nonmajor Total 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

June 30,2010 

Total Governmental Fund Balances (page 23) 

Amounfs reported for governmental activiiies in the Statement of Nel 
Assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial 
resources and. therefore. are not renorted in the governmental funds. The cost of assets - 
is $68,618,158 and the accumulated depreciationlamortization is $27,042,238. 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay current period 
expenditures and, therefore, are deferrcd in the governmental funds 

Property Taxes - General Purposes 
Property Taxes - Debt Service 
STEP Grant 
Public Health Bioterrorism Grant 
Community Development Block &ant 
Drainage AssessmenWSpecid Assessments 

'lhc lntcrn;il Servlre I:und IS used b) man3grmcn1 to charge the costs ofthe paninl 
sclil'und~nr! of the (i)untVs health lnsurdncc benefit d m  to ~ndlvidusl 
funds. The-assets and liabilities of the Internal service Fund are included 
in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 

Long-tenn hab~lit~es, including capttal lease purchase agreements payable, 
bonds and notes payable, accrued Interest payable, other post employment benefits payable, 
ternnnatlon benefits payable and compensated absences payable, are not due and payable in the 
CulTent 
per~od and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Net assets of governmental activities (page 20) 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES -GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax 
Local Option Sales Tax 
Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and Permits 
Charges For Service 
Use of Money and Property 
Fines, Forfeitures and Defaults 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
Mental Health 
Counry Environment and Education 
Roads and Transportation 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administration 
Non-Program 

Debt Service 
Capital Projects 

Total Expenditures 

Mental Secondary Public 
General Health Rural Services Roads Health 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 1,137,735 (914,380) 1,691,780 (1,346,828) (1,063,361) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Sale of Capital Assets 
Drainage Warrants Issued 
Operating Transfers In 
Operating Transfers Out 
Issuance of Revenue Bond 
Issuance of Capital Lease Purchase Agreement 20;679 0 0 0 0 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (821,448) (25,546) (1,600,000) 1,615,725 1,234,902 

Net Change in Fund Balances 316,287 (939,926) 91,780 268,897 171,541 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 5,746,193 919,664 848,808 3,950,312 721,725 

Increase in Reserve For: 
Inventories 

Fund Balances End of Yea 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Debt Capital 
Service Projects Nonmajor Total 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

KE(:OYCILLXI'IOS OF TllE STAI'EhlEN'I' OF REVENUES, EXPEYDITCRES AND 
CIIANGES IN FCYD R.\L,\NCES - CO\'ERNhlEN"\L FI'SDS TO THE ST,\TEblENl OF ,\(I'I\'ITIES -- 

Year Ended June 30,2010 

Net change in fund balances - Total governmental funds @age 26) ($420,486) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Adivities are different because: 
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expendimes while govemmental activities 
report depreciationlamortization expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets. 
Capital outlay expenditures and contributed capital assets exceeded depreciationlamortization 
expense in the current year as follows: 

Expenditures for capital assets 
Capital assets contributed by the Iowa Department of Transportation 
Capital assets contributed by the Federal Government 
Depreciation/amortization expense 

In the Statement of Activities, the loss on the disposition of capital assets is reported, whereas the 
governmental funds report the proceeds from the disposition as an increase in financial resources. 

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the County's year end, 
they are not cons~dered available revenues and are defcrred in the governmental funds as follows: 

Property tax 2,922 
Other (769,5 15) (766,593) 

Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial resources to govemmental funds, 
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of long- 
term liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term 
liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Current year debt repayments exceeded issuances 
as follows: 

Bonds and leases issued 
Principal payments 
Lease payments 
Installment payments 
Drainage warrants 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in govemmental funds, as follows: 

Compensated absences 
Other postemployment benefitdterminat~on benefits 
Interest on long-term debt 

The change in the amount reserved for Secondary Roads inventory is reported as an increase or 
decrease in reserved fund balance in the govemmental funds. This amount is reported as an 
increase or decrease in Secondary Roads expenses in the Statement of Activities. 

The Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of employee 
health benefits, telephone service, and property insurance to individual funds. The change 
in Net Assets of the Internal Senrice Funds are reported with governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of govemmental activities (page 21) 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
June 30,2010 

Enterprise 
Meservey Swaledale 

Wastewater Wastewater 
Collection & Collection & Internal 

Treatment Facility Treatment Facility Totals Service 
ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Due From Other Governments 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets: 
Capital Assets: 

Land 37,300 25,000 62,300 
Imnrovements Other Than Buildings 1.542.226 1,164.417 2,706,643 - . . 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (341,638) (444;767) (786,405) 0 

Total Non-Current Assets 1,237,888 744,650 1,982,538 0 

Total Assets $1,260,285 - $816,343 - $2,076,628 $383,055 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Note Payable: 

Portion Due Within One Year: 
Note Payable 5,034 4,945 9,979 0 

Total Current Liabilities 5,482 6,286 11,768 6,243 

Non-Current Liabilities: 
Portion Due After One Year: 

Note Payable 328,005 229,962 557,967 0 

Total Liabilities 333,487 236,248 569,735 6,243 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 904,849 509,743 1,414,592 0 
Unrestricted 21,949 70,352 92,301 376,812 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES 
M FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRlETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Enterprise 
Meservey Swaledale 

Wastewater Wastewater 
Collection & Collection & 

Treatment Treatment Internal 
Facility Facilrty Totals Service 

Interfbnd Services Provided $0 $0 $0 $2,661,706 
Employee Payments 0 0 0 122,695 
Miscellaneous 36,662 30,555 67,217 129,478 

Total Operating Revenues 36,662 30,555 67,217 2,913,879 

OPERATMG EXPENSES: 
Waste Water Treatment Facility: 

Depreciation 
Miscellaneous 

Health Insurance: 
Medical Claims 
Insurance Premium 
Administrative Fees 
Miscellaneous 

Cenhal Services: 
Telephone 
Insurance 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Net Income (Loss) 

Net Assets Beginning of Year 

Net Assets End of Yea 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Enterprise 
Mesemey Swaledale 

Wastewater Wastewater 
Collection & Collection & Internal 

Treatment Facility Treahnent Facility Totals Servlce 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTMTIES: 

Cash Received from Customers $37,006 $30,939 $67,945 $0 
Cash Received from Operating Funds 0 0 0 2,533,970 
Cash Received &om Employees and Other 0 0 0 251,735 
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Services (6,912) (14,664) (21,576) (2,726,598) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating 
Activities 30,094 16,275 46,369 59,107 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTMTIES: 

Interest Income 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Interest Expense 
Note Payments 

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Net increase in Cash 

Cash - Beginmng of Year 

Cash - End of Year 

RECONCKIATION OF OPERATING 
INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income 
(Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operating 
Activities: 

Depreciation 
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables 
Increase (Decrease) in Payables 

Net Cash Provided by Operating 
Activities 

See Notes To Financial Statements. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS 
June 30,2010 

ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments: 

County Treasurer 
Other County Officials 

Receivables: 
Property Tax: 

Delinquent 
Succeeding Year 

Accounts 
Assessments 

Due From Other Governments 
Total Assets 

LIABnlTlES 
Accounts Payable 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 
Due To Other Governments 
Trusts Payable 
Compensated Absences 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies 

Cerro Gordo County is a political subdivision of the State of Iowa and operates under the Home Rule provisions of the Constitution of 
Iowa. The County operates under the Board of Supervisors form of government. Elections are on a partisan basis. Other elected 
officials operate independently with the Board of Supervisors. These officials are the Auditor, Treasurer, Recorder, Sheriff, and 
Attorney. The County provides numerous services to citizens, including law enforcement, health and social services, parks and cultural 
activities, planning and zoning, roadway construction and maintenance, general administrative services, and drainage district services. 

The County's financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the 
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. 

For financial repolting purposes, Cerro Gordo County has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions, and 
authorities. The County has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable and other 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the 
County's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth 
criteria to he considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an 
organization's governing body, and (1) the ability of the County to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the 
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the County. 

These financial statenwnts present Cerro Gordo County (the  prima^^ govemment) and its component units. The component units 
discussed below are included in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial 
relationships with the County. 

Blended Comvonent Units - The following component units are entities which are legally separate from the County, but are so 
intertwined with the County they are, in substance, the same as the County. They are reported as part of the County and blended 
into the appropriate funds. 

One hundred and fifty-six drainage districts have been established pursuant to Chapter 468 of the Code of Iowa for the drainage of 
surface waters from agricultural and other lands or the protection of such lands from overflow. Although these districts are legally 
separate from the County, they are controlled, managed and supervised by the Cerro Gordo County Board of Supervisors. The 
drainage districts are reported as a Special Revenue Fund. Financial information of the individual drainage districts can he 
obtained ftom the Cerro Gordo County Auditor's Office. 

Jointly Govemed Oreanizations - The County participates in several jointly governed organizations that provide goods or services 
to the citizenry of the County hut do not meet the criteria of a joint venture since there is no ongoing financial interest or 
responsibility by the participating governments. The County Board of Supervisors are members of or appoint representatives to 
the following hoards and commissions: Cerro Gordo County and City Assessor's Conference Board, Cerro Gordo County 
Emergency Management Commission, Cerro Gordo County Joint E911 Service Board, and Advanced Law Enforcement 
Investigative and Administrative System Users. Financial hansactions of these organizations are included in the County's 
financial statements only to the extent of the County's fiduciruy relationship with the organization and, as such, are reported in the 
Agency Funds of the County. 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Gu\,crnmcnt-\r~& 1.inxnclal Srarcnig~lr - The Stalemcnr of Net Asscrs and the Sntcmenr of Acrn ltlcs report ~llf~rm~tlon on all of 
the nonriJuc~ary acli\,irics of the Count, 2nd its component units For lhe lnust pan, the cffccl of the ~ntvrfund acr~v~ry has been 
removed from these statements. ~ovekmental activities are supported by property tax, intergovernmental revenues-and other 
nonexchange transactions. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the County's nonfiduciaty assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. 
Net assets are reported in the following categories. 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization and 
reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement 
of those assets. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 

Note 1 : Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Restricted net assets result when conshsints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed or imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of the two preceding categories. Unrestricted net 
assets often have constraints on resources that are imposed by management which can he removed or modified. 

The Statement of Activities demonshates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 
2) grants, contributions, and interest restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. 
Properly tax and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements - Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter axe excluded from the govemment-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds 
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported 
as other nonmajor govemmental funds. 

The County reports the following major governn~ental funds: 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. All general tax revenues and other revenues not allocated by law 
or contractual agreement to some other fund ilre accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid the general operating 
expenditures, the fixed charges and the capital ~mprovement costs that are not paid from other funds. 

Special Revenue: 

The Mental Health Fund is used to account for property tax and other revenues designated to be used to fund mental health, 
mental retardation, and developmental disabilities services. 

The Rural Services Fund is used to account for property tax and revenues to provide senices which are primarily intended 
to benefit those persons residing in the county outside of incorporated city areas. 

The Secondary Roads Fund is utilized to account for secondary road construction and maintenance 

The Puhl~c Health Fund 1s utilized to account for Federal and State grants and fees collected by the County to provlde and 
mamtaln the County Puhl~c Health Depment .  

The Debt Service Fund is utilized to account for the payment of interest and principal on the County's general long-term debt. 

Tne Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all resources used in the acquisition and construction of capital facilities. 

Additionally, the County reports the following proprietary funds: 

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods and services provided by one department or agency to other 
departments or agencies of the County on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Central Services Fund accounts for the costs of 
the centralized service operation for the telephone service and property insurance. The Health Insurance Fund accounts for 
the County's insurance for health insurance benefits provided by governmental funds to employees. Costs are hilled to 
govemmental funds and employees based on historical claims experience. 

The Enterprise Funds account for operations that axe financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises, where the intent of the government's council is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general 
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the governing body has 
decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes. The Enterprise Funds account 
for the activities of the Mesemey Wastewater Collection and Treatment Faciliry and the Swaledale Wastewater Collection 
and Treatment Facility 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 

Fiduciary Funds - Agency finds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, certain jointly governed organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds. Agency funds are custodial in 
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The County's Agency Funds consist of 
the following: 

Elected Officials - To account for the activity of various cash accounts maintained by elected officials and other County 
departments which have not been remitted to the County Treasurer, who acts as trustee for all pooled cash and inveshnents of the 
County, or to other individuals, private entities or governments. 

Relief - Representative Payee - To account for the funds of individuals incapable of managing their own affairs. 

Veterans Affairs - To account for the funds used to maintain the veterans plaque. 

Auditor - To account for revenues received firom the sale of GIS maps, plat books, and copies 

Recorder - To account for the recording of deeds and mortgages, writing fees for DNR licenses, passport issuance fees, and the 
sale of various licenses (hunting, fishing, ATV, boat and snowmobile). 

Sheriff - To account for fees associated with the serving of papers and the sale of gun pernuts. 

Other Agency Funds - Clearing accounts that account for funds collected by the County on behalf of individuals and other 
governmental entities: 

Agricultural Extension Education 
County Assessor 
County Special Appraisal 
City Assessor 
City Special Appraisal 
Schools 
Community College 
Corporations 
Townships 
City Special Assessments 
Auto License and Use Tax 
Brucellosis and Tuberculosis Eradication 
Joint Disaster Services 
Clcx Lakc Sm~rd~y  Dlsrrlcl 
Count, L\lS Assoclatlon 
~ d v k c e  Tax 
Cash LongIShort 
Tax Sale Redemption 
Dispute Resolution 
E-911 Operations 
Advance Law Enforcement Investigative and Administration System 
Recorder's Transfer Fee 
Employee Benefits 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES T O  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. MEASURE= FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The govemment-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property tax is recognized as revenue in the year for which for 
which it is levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been satisfied. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
considered to he available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days after year 
end. 

Property tax, rntergovemmental revenues (shared revenues, grants and reimbursements 6om other governments) and interest are 
considered to he susceptible to accrual. All other revenue items are considered to he measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the County. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, principal and interest on 
long-term debt, claims and judgements and compensated absences are recorded as expenditures only when payment is due. 
Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long term debt and 
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Under the t e r n  of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, 
categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both reshicted and 
unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the County's policy to first apply cost-reimbursements grant 
resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

'The proprictlry iunds of the Cuunly apply 311 applicabls GASB pn)nounccmcnls as well fi lshc follo\v~ng pronouncements issucd 
on or befure Xu\emhcr 311. 19x9. unless nrunounccmcnts confllct or conrradlcr GASB Dronounccnlcnts: Financial Accountlnc - 
Standards Board Statements and Interpretations, Accountmg Pnnclples Board Opm~ons, and Accounhng Research Bullehns of 
the Conmunee on Accounhng Procedure. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing s e ~ c e s  and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County's Intemal Service Funds are from charges to customers for 
sales and services. Operating expenses for Intemal Service Funds include the cost of services and adminishative expenses. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

D. ASSETS, L I A B I L ~ S  AND FUND EQUlTY 

The following accounting policies are followed in preparing the fmancial statements: 

Cash, Pooled Investments and Cash Eauivalents - The cash balances of most County funds are pooled and invested. Interest 
earned on investments is recorded in the General Fund, unless otherwise provided by law. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all short-term cash investments that are highly liquid are considered to be cash 
equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and at the day of purchase, they have a maturity 
date no longer than three months. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FDITANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30.2010 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Propem Tax Receivable - Property tax in governmental funds is accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the levy or lien date, which is the date that the tax asking is certified by the 
County Board of Supervisors. Delinquent property taxes receivable represents unpaid taxes for the current and prior years. The 
succeeding year property tax receivable represents taxes certified by the Board of Supervisors to be collected in the next fiscal 
year for the pluposes set out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, the Board of Supervisors is required to certify its 
budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal year. However, by statute, the tax asking and budget certification for the 
following fiscal year becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has 
been recorded, the related revenue is deferred in both the govemment-wide and fund financial statements and will not be 
recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied. 

Property tax revenue recognized in these funds become due and collectible in September and March of the fiscal year with a I%% 
per month penalty for delinquent payments; is based on January 1,2008 assessed property valuations; is for the tax accrual period 
July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010 and reflects the tax asking contained in the budget certified by the County hoard of 
Supervisors in March 2009. 

Interest and Penaltv on Provertv Tax Receivable - Interest and penalty on property tax receivable represents the amount of interest 
and penalty that was due and payable but has not been collected. 

Drainage and Special Assessments Receivable - Drainage and special assessments receivable represents amounts assessed to 
individuals for work done which benefit their property. 7hese assessments are payable by individuais in not less than 10 nor more 
than 20 annual installments. Each annual installment with interest on the unpaid balance is due on Sentember 30 and is subiect to ~ ~ ~,~~~ ~- 

the same interest and penalties as other taxes. Drainage assessments receivable represent assessments which are payable but not 
yet due. 

Due from and Due to Other Funds - During the course of its operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds. To 
the extent that certain transactions between funds had not been paid or received as of June 30, 2010, balances of interfund 
amounts receivable or payable have been recorded in the financial statements. 

Due from Other Governments - Due from other governments represents amounts due from the State of Iowa, various shared 
revenues, grants, and rennbursements from other governments. 

Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories in the Special Revenue Funds consist 
of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are 
purchased. Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balance resewe which indicates that they are not available to 
liquidate current obligations. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment and vehicles, and infrashuctue assets acquired after July 1, 
1980 (e.g., roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, and similar items which are immovable and of value only to the County), are 
reported in the applicable governmental or husiness-tpe activities columns in the govemment-wide Statement of Net Assets. 
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair 
market value at the date of donation. Tne costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend lives are not capitalized. Reportable capital assets are defined by the County as assets with initial, individual 
coats in excess of the following thresholds and estimated useful lives in excess of two years. 

Asset Class 

Infrastructure 
Land, buildings and improvements 
Intangibles 
Equipment and vehicles 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Capital Assets of the County are depreciated/amohzed using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Class 

Buildings 
Building improvements 
Infrastructure 
Intangibles 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

Estimated 
Useful lives 

Due to Other Governments -Due to other governments represents taxes and other revenues collected by the County and payments 
for s e ~ c e s  which will he remitted to other governments. 

Trusts Pavable - Trusts payable represent amounts due to others which are held by various County ofiicials in fiduciary capacities 
until the underlying legal matters are resolved. 

Uneamed Revenue - Although certain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available means collected within the 
current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafler to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Unearned 
revenue in the governmental fund financial statements represents the amount of assets that have been recognized, but the related 
revenue has not been recognized since the assets are not collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon 
enough thereafler to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Uneamed revenue consists of unspent grant proceeds as well 
as property tax receivable and other receivables not collected within sixty days after year-end. 

Unearned revenue on the Statement of Net Assets consists of succeeding year property tax receivable that will not be recognized 
as revenue until the year for which it is levied and unspent grant proceeds. 

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period have also been 
reported as uneamed revenue. 

Comensated Absences - County employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation and sick leave hours for 
subsequent use payable to employees. A liability is recorded when incurred in the govemment-wide, proprietary and fiduciary 
fund financial statements. The compensated absences liability has been computed based on rates of pay in effect at June 30,2010. 
Tne compensated absence liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the General, Mental Health, 
Rural Services and Secondary Road Funds. 

Long-term Liabilities - In the govemment-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt 
and bther long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable g&emmenLl activities or propriet&fund Statement 
of Net Assets. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Issuance 
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Fund h u i t v  - In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance are reported for amounts that are not 
available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance 
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 

Net Assets - The Net Assets of the Employee Group Health Fund is designated for anticipated future catashophic losses of the 
County. 

E. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

m e  budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Required Supplementary Information. During the year ended 
June 30, 2010, disbursements exceeded the amounts budgeted in the Adminishation, Non-Program and Debt Service functions 
and disbursements in certain departments exceeded the amounts appropriated. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 

Note 2: Cash and Pooled Investments 

The County's deposits in banks at June 30, 2010 were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in 
accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure 
there will be no loss of public funds. 

The County is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States government, its agencies and 
instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of 
Supervisors; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered 
open-end management investment companies; and certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage 
district. 

Note 3: Due from and Due to Other Funds 

The detail of interfund receivables and payables at June 30,2010, is as follows: 

Rece~vable Fund Payable Fund Amount 
Generai Fund Special Revenue: 

Special Revenue: 
Public Health 

MHOD Services 
Empowerment 
Secondary Road 
Public Health 

General Fund 

Total $18,807 

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund goods and services are provided or reimburseable expenditures 
occur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system and payments between funds are made. 

Note 4: Interfund Transfers 

The detail of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30,2010 is as follows: 

Transfer To Transfer From Amount 
General Fund Special Revenue 

Mental Health $25,896 

Special Revenue 
Secondary Roads 

Public Health 
Total 

Special Revenue: 
Rural Services 

General Basic 

Transfers generally move resources from the fund statutorily required to collect the resources to the fund statutorily required to expend 
the resources. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 
- 

Note 5: Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows: 

Balance 
Beginning Balance 
of Year - End 
as restated Increases Decreases of Year 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciatedlamortized: 
Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Vehicles 
Intaneihles 
~nfra&cture 33,786,431 4,1851778 0 37,9721209 
Total capital assets being depreciatediamortized 62,802,802 4,867,486 1,236,097 66,434,191 

Less accumulated depreciationlamortization for: 
Buildings 2,65 1,923 350,883 192,089 2,810,717 
Improvements other than buildings 426,823 9,675 0 436,498 
Machinery and equipment 4,683,302 506,643 151,221 5,038,724 
Vehicles 2,423,923 275,699 95,664 2,603,958 
Intangibles 0 0 0 0 
Infrastructure, road network 14,748,210 1,404,131 0 16,152,341 
Total accumulated depreaationlamortization 24,934,181 2,547,031 438,974 27,042,238 

Total capital assets being depreciatedlamortized, net 37,868,621 2,320,455 797,123 39,391,953 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $40,711,476 $3,189,240 $2,324,796 $41,575,920 

Depreciationlamortiration expense was charged to the following functions: 
Governmental Activities: 

Public safety and legal services $391,984 
Physical health and social services 49,722 
Mental health 2,63 1 
County environment and education 43,711 
Roads and transportation 1,919,071 
Governmental services to residents 39,948 
Administration services 99,964 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $2,547,031 

Capital asset activity of the Enterprise Funds for the year ended June 30,2010 was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Bemnning End 

Capital Assets not being depreciated: 
Land 

of year' Increases Decreases of Year 

$62,300 $0 $0 $62,300 

Capital Assets being depreciated: 
Infrastructure 2,706,643 0 0 2,706,643 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Infrastructure 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 
Business-type activities capital assets, net 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 

Note 6: Due to Other Governments 

The County purchases services from other governmental units and also acts as a fee and tax collection agent for various governmental 
units. Tax collections are remitted to those governments in the month following collection. A s u m m y  of amounts due to other govem- 
ments is as follows: 

Fund Description Amount 
General Services $22,278 
Special Revenue: 

Mental Health 
Secondary Roads 
Public Health 

Total Governmental Funds 
Agency 

County Special Appraisal 
Schools 
City Assessor 
Corporations 
Auto License & Use Tax 
City Special Appraisal 
County Assessor 
E9 1 1 Operations 
City Special Assessments 
All Others 

Total for Agency Funds 

Collections 

Note 7: Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30,201 0, is as follows: 

Capital Loan 
Notes &Revenue Lease Installment Compensated 

Governmental Activities Bonds Obligations Purchases Absences 
Balance - Beginning of Year $ L2,198,000 $148,202 $321,422 $736,444 

Increases 168,750 20,679 0 766,147 
Decreases 

Balance - End of Year 

Due within one year $510,000 $53,312 $0 $766,147 

Termination Drainage 
Benefits warranis Total 

Balance - Beginning of Year $19,550 $29,971 $13,453,589 
Increases 9,900 45,287 1.010.763 
Decreases 

Balance - End of Year 

Due within one year 

Sewer Revenue 
Capital Loan 

Business Type Activities Notes 
Balance - Beginning of Year $577,497 

Increases 0 
Decreases 

Balance - End of Year 

Due within one year $9,979 

41 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 

Note 8: Capital Lease Purchase Agreements I Installment Purchase Agreements 

The County entered into a capital lease purchase agreement for the Administration's postage machine totaling $29,325. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30,2010, the lease was terminated. The County entered into a capital lease agreement totaling $20,679. The following is 
a schedule of the future minimum lease payments, including interest at 8.233% per annum, and the present value of net minimum lease 
payments under the agreement in effect at June 30,ZOlO for Equipment: 

Year Ending Postage - 
June 30, ~ a c h i e  

201 1 $5,087 
2012 5.087 
2013 
2014 
2015 

Total Minimum Lease Pannents 
Less: Amount Representing Interest 3,532 
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $18,088 

Payments under capital lease purchase agreements for year ended June 30,2010, totaled $2,591. 

In August of 2008, the Public Health Department entered into a capital lease purchase ameement for a Virtual Network capitalized at 
$159,453. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments; includinginterest at 6.36% per annum and ;he present 
value of net minimum lease payments under the ageement in effect at June 30,2010 for Equipment: 

Year Ending Virtual 
June 30, Network 

201 1 54.554 
2012 54;554 

Total Minimum Lease Payments 109,108 
Less: Amount Representing Interest 9,591 
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $99,517 

Payments under capital lease purchase agreements for year ended June 30,2010, totaled $45,341 

In August of 2008, the Secondary Road Department entered into two separate installment purchase ameements for three motormaders - 
roraling S2U2,!!95 :tnd S439,816 rcsprctively. 'Ihr ~nstallment a~rccmcnts wcrc pa~d In full during the tiscnl )ear  enJed June 30, 2010. 
Payn~ents undcr thi ~nslallmcnt purchase agreements for year cndcd Junc 30, ?OIU, towled $101,497 md S 219,925 rrapccl~\,ely. 

Note 9: General Obligation Capital Loan Notes I Local Option Sales and Service Tax Revenue Bonds 

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the County issued $9,000,000 and $4,500,000 of General Obligation Capital Loan Notes for the 
purpose of constructing and equipping a new Law Enforcement Center. The notes are payable from a continuing annual levy of taxes on 
all of the taxable property in the County. Interest on each note is due annually on December 1 and principal and interest payments are 
due annually on June 1. Maturities of the various notes range from 2009 through 2026. Details of the outstanding bonds are as follows: 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30.2010 

2006B $9,000,000 Issue 2007A $4,500,000 Issue 
Year Ending June 30, Interest Rate Principal Interest Interest Rate Principal Interest 

During the year ended June 30,2009, the County issued $885,000 of Local Option Sales and Service Tax Revenue Bonds. The purpose 
of the bonds was for paying the County's share of the Clear Lake Dredging and Restoration Project, a rural County betterment project 
for the County of Cerro Gordo. The funds were to be advanced as needed for the project. As of June 30, 2009, $300,000 had been 
advanced to the County. During the year ended June 30,2010, an additional $ 168.750 was advanced to the County. Interest p a m t s  - .  . . 
are Juc ~em~mnuallv, commencing Dc,crmbrr I ,  2008 and prlnc~pal payments are due anounll) conlrncnclng. Junc I .  20U9, n~arut~ng 
Junc I ,  2028. Paymcnrs made during tiscal ycar 2010 toralcd S 20,000. Dcralls ofthz oursvanding bun& are as rulluws. 

Year Ending June 30, 
2008 $885,000 Issue 

Interest Rate Principal Interest 

Note 10: Retirement Benefits 

The County offers retirement benefits to its employees. There are different criteria for different collective bargaining units and non- 
bargaining units, however, the general rule is: Any retiree with 30 years of service at age 58, or 20 years at age 62, will be provided with a 
single health insurance policy premium until the age of 65 for some, or 65 or Medicare eligible, whichever is later, for others. 

At June 30, 2010, the County has obligations to two participants with a total liabil~ty of $ 15,025. Retirement benefits expenses for four 
retirees for the year ended June 30,2010 totaled $ 14,425. 

Note 11: Drainage WarrantslDrainage Improvement Certificates Payable 

Drainage warrants are warrants which are legally drawn on drainage district funds but are not paid for lack of funds, in accordance with 
Chapter 74 of the Code of Iowa. The warrants bear interest at rates in effect at the time the wasrants are first presented. Warrants will be 
paid as funds are available. 

Drainage warrants are paid from the Special Revenue Fund solely from special assessments against benefited properties. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2010 

Note 12: Sewer Revenue Capital Loan Notes 

The County has issued $280,000 in sewer revenue capital loan notes to fund the costs of improvement and extensions to the County's 
Sanitary Sewer Utility including construction of a sanitary sewer collection and treatment facility for users in the City of Swaledale. The 
notes and interest are payable solely fiom the net earnings of the system and not from general funds of the County. Payments on the 
capital loan notes began on July 1, 1999. The capital loan notes have an interest rate of 4.50% with the final payment due July 1, 2036. 
Details of the sewer revenue capital loan notes are as follows: 

Year Endine 
June 30, 

201 1 
Principal Interest Total 

4,945 10.571 15,516 
2012 5,168 101348 15;516 
2013 5,400 10,116 15,516 
2014 5,643 9,873 15,516 
2015 5,897 9,619 15,516 

2016-2020 33,714 43,866 77,580 
2021-2025 42,014 35,566 77,580 
2026-2030 52,357 25,223 77,580 
203 1-2035 65,246 12,334 77,580 

2036 14,523 654 15,177 

$234,907 - $168,170 $403,077 

The County has also issued $59,100, $253,200 and $49,000 in sewer revenue capital loan notes to fund the costs of improvements and 
extensions to the County's Sanitary Sewer Utility including construction of a sanitary sewer collection and treahnent facility for users in 
the City of Meservey. The notes and interest are payable solely from the net eamings of the system and do not represent general 
obligations of the County. Interest payments on the capital loan notes began on July 1,2003. The capital loan notes have an interest rate 
of 4.5% with final payment due by July 1,2044. Details of the sewer revenue capital loan notes are as follows: 

Year Ending - 
June 30, 
201 1 

$59,100 Note 
Pnncrpal Interest 

838 2,437 
875 2,400 
915 2,360 
956 2,319 

$253,200 Note $49,000 Note Total 
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

3,587 10,443 609 2,107 5,034 14,987 
3,749 10,281 637 2,079 5,261 14,760 

Note 13: Pension and Retirement Benefits 

The County contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the State of Iowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits which are established by State 
statue to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary infomation. The report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box 91 17, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-91 17. 

Most regular plan members are requlred to contribute 4.30% of their annual covered salary and the County is required to contribute 
6.65% of annual covered salary. Certain employees in speclal risk occupations and the County contribute an actuarially determined 
contribution rate. Contribution requirements are established by State statute. The County contribution to IPERS for the years ended June 
30,2010,2009 and 2008 were $771,687, $710,585 and $627,155 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
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Note 14: Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

Cerro Gordo County implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Revortin~ bv Emlovers for Postem~loment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions during the year ended June 30,2009. 

Plan Descri~tion. The County operates a single-employer retiree benefit plan which provides medicallprescription drug benefits for 
retirees and their spouses. There are 251 active and 5 retired members in the plan. Employees must be age 55 or older at retirement. The 
medicaUprescription drug benefit, which is a partially self -funded medical plan, is administered by Group Services. Retirees under age 
65 pay the same premium for the medicallprescription drug benefit as active employees, which results in an implicit subsidy and an 
OPEB liability. The plan does not issue a stand-alone report. 

Funding Policv. The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the County. The County 
currently finances the retiree benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution 
of the County (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over 
a period not to exceed 30 years. 
The table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for June 30,2010, the amount actually contributed to the plan and 
the changes in the County's net OPEB obligation: 

Annual required contribution $270,845 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 3,908 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 0 

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 274,753 
Contributions made (6,138) 

Increase in net OPEB obligation 268,616 
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of the year $245,401 

Net OPEB obligation - end of the yea 

For calculation of the net OPEB obligation, the actuary has set the transition day as July 1,2008. The end of year net OPEB obligation 
was calculated by the actuary as the cumulative difference between the actuarially determined funding requirements and the plan's actual 
contributions for the year ended June 30,2010. 
For the fiscal year 2010, the County contributed $ 6,138 to the medical plan. Plan members receiving benefits contributed $ 12,275, or 
66% of the premium costs. 
The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 
2010 are summarized as follows: 

Funded Status and Funding Promss. As of July 1, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date for the period July 1, 2008 through 
June 30, 2009, the actuarial accrued liability was $2,045,206, with no actuarial value of assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial liability 
(UAAL) of $2,045,206. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $9,761,793, and the ratio of 
the UAAL to the covered payroll was 20.9%. As of June 30,2010, there were no hust fund assets. 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30,2010 

Actuarial Methods and Assumvtions. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumption about future employment, 
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as Required 
Supplementary Information in the section following the Notes to the Financial Statements, will present multiyear trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members and 
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between employer 
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of 

Annual 
OPEB Cost 

$274,753 

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB 

Cost Contributed 
2.23% 

Net 
OPEB 

Obligation 
$514,017 
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Note 14: Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued) 

short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long term perspective of the 
calculations. 

As of the July 1, 2008 actuarial date, the Frozen Entry Age Actuarial Cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 2.5% 
discount rate based on the County's funding policy. The projected annual medical trend rate is 6%. 

Mortality rates are from the 94 Group Annuity Mortality Table, applied on a gender specific basis. Annual retirement and termination 
probabilities were developed from the retirement probabilities from the IPERS Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2007 and 
applying the termination factors used in IPERS Actuarial Report as of June 30,2007. 

Projected claim costs of the medical plan are $471 per month for retirees less than 65. The salary increase rate was assumed to be 4% per 
year. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage on an open basis over 30 years. 

Note 15: Risk Management 

Cerro Gordo County is a member in the Iowa Communities Assurance Pool, as allowed by Chapter 331.301 of the Code of Iowa. The 
Iowa Communities Assurance Pool (Pool) is a local government risk-sharing pool whose 634 members include various governmental 
entities throughout the State of Iowa. The Pool was funned in August 1986 for the purpose of managing and funding third-party liability 
claims against its memhers. The Pool provides coverage and protection in the following categories: general liability, automobile liability, 
automobile physical damage, public officials liability, police professional liability, property, inland marine, and hoilerlmachine~y. There 
have been no reductions in insurance coverage from prior years. 

Each member's annual casualty contributions to the Pool fund current operations and provide capital. Annual operating contrihutions are 
those amounts necessary to fund, on a cash basis, the Pool's general and administrative expenses, claims, claims expenses and 
reinsurance expenses due and payable in the current year, plus all or any portion of any deficiency in capital. Capital contributions are 
made during the first six years of memhership and are maintained to equal 200 percent of the total current members' basis rates or to 
comply with the requirements of any applicable regulatory authority having jurisdiction over the Pool. 

The Pool also provides property overage. Members who elect such coverage make annual operating contributions which are necessary 
to fund. on a cash basis. the Pool's eeneral and administrative exuenses and reinsurance oremiums. all of which are due and ~avable in - . , 
the current year, plus all or any portion of any deficiency in capital. Any year-end operating surplus is transferred to capital. Deficiencies 
in operations are offset by transfers from capital and, if insufficient, by the subsequent year's member contributions. 

The County's property and casualty contributious to the risk pool are recorded as expenditures from its operating funds at the time of 
payment to the risk pool. The County's annual contributions to the Pool for the year ended June 30,2010 were $204,272. 

The Pool uses reinsurance and excess risk-sharing agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses. The Pool retains general, 
automobile, police professional, and public officials liability risks up to $350,000 per claim. Claims exceeding $350,000 are reinsured 
in an amount not to exceed $2,650,000 per claim and $10,000,000 in the aggegate per year. For members requiring specific coverage 
from $3,000,000 to $10,000,000, such excess coverage is also reinsured. Property and automobile physical damage risks are retained by 
the Pool up to $150,000 each occurrence, each location, with excess coverage reinsured by the Travelers Insurance Company. 

The Pool's intergovernmental contract with its members provides that in the event a casualty claim or series of claims exceeds the amount 
of risk-sharing protection provided by the member's risk-sharing certificate, or in the event that a series of casualty claims exhausts total 
members' equity plus anv reinsurance and anv excess risk-sharing recoveries. then oavment of such claims shall he the ohlieation of the . . .  - . - 
respective individual memher. The County does not report a liability for losses in excess of reinsurance or excess risk-sharing recoveries 
unless it is deemed probable that such losses have occurred and the amount of such losses can be reasonably estimated. Accordingly, at 
June 30,2010, no liability has been recorded in the County's financial statements. As of June 30,2010, settled claims have not exceeded 
the risk pool or reinsurance coverage since the Pool's inception. 

Members agree to continue membership in the Pool for a period of not less than one full year. After such period, a member who has 
given 60 days prior written notice may withdraw from the Pool. Upon withdrawal, payments for all casualty claims and claim expenses 
become the sole responsibility of the withdrawing member, regardless of whether a claim was incurred or reported prior to the member's 
withdrawal. Members withdrawing within the first six years of membership may receive a partial refund of their casualty capital 
contribution. If a memher withdraws afier the sixth year, the memher is refunded 100 percent of its casualty capital contributions. 
However, the refund is reduced by an amount equal to the annual casualty operating contribution which the withdrawing member would 
have made for the one-year period following withdrawal. 

46 
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Note 15: Risk Management (Continued) 

The County also carries commercial insurance purchased from other insurers for coverage associated with workers compensation and 
employee blanket bond in the amount of $500,000 and $100,000, (except for the Treasurer which is $500,000) respectively. The County 
assumes liability for any deductibles and claims in excess of coverage limitations. Settled claims resulting tom these risks have not 
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Note 16: Employee Health Insurance Plan 

The Internal Service, Employee Group Health Insurance Fund was established to account for the partial self funding of the County's 
health insurance benefit plan. The plan is funded by both employee and County contributions and the fully insured portion is 
administered through a service agreement with Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Iowa and the self funded portion is administered 
through a service agreement with Group Services, Inc. The agreement is subject to automatic renewal provisions. 

Monthly payments of service fees and plan conhibutions to the Cerro Gordo County Health Insurance Fund are recorded as expenditures 
from the operating funds. Under the administrative services agreement, monthly payments of administrative fees and claims processed 
are paid to Group Service, Inc. kom the Cmo Gordo County Health Insurance Fund. The County's contribution to the fund for the year 
ended June 30,2010 was $2,379,021. 

Amounts payable t o m  the Health Insurance Fund at June 30, 2010 total $0 which is for incurred but not reported (IBNR) and reported 
but not paid claims. The amounts are based on actuarial estimates of the amounts necessary to pay prior-year and current-year claims, 
and to establish a reserve for catastrophic losses. That reserve was $ 294,509 at June 30, 201 0 and is reported as a designation of the 
Health Insurance Fund Net Assets. Infomlation on the reconciliation of changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the current year 
and prior year is as follows: 

Balance as Current Year Claims Balance as 
of July 1 Claims Payments of June 30 

2008-2009 $0 $141,800 $141,800 $0 

Note 17: Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 

Cem Gordo County is a member of the Landfill of North Iowa. The Landfill of North Iowa is an inter-governmental agency established 
in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 28E of the State Code of Iowa (Inter-governmental Cooperation Agreement). The purpose 
of the agency is to provide for the economic disposal or collection and disposal of all solid waste produced or generated within each 
member city, town, and the unincorporated portion of Cmo Gordo County, comprising the municipalities. In performing its duties, the 
agency may contract with and expend funds t o m  federal, state, and local agencies and private individuals and corporations. 

State and federal laws and regulations require the agency to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to 
~erform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirtv vears atter closure. Although closure and ~ostclosure care . . - 
costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, state laws require the agency to submit a closure and 
postclosure plan detailing the schedule for and the methods by which the operator will meet the cond~tions for proper closure and 
postclosure. The agency is in compliance with this requirement. On June 30, 2010, the County did not anticipate any additional 
assessments for closure and postclosure care costs. 

Note 18: Related Party Transactions 

Business transactions between the County and County officials or employees were noted. With the exception of one hansaction, the 
transactions appear to be authorized in accordance with Chapter 331.342 of the Code of Iowa because the contract totals were less than 
$1,500 for the fiscal year or the county employee did not participate in acquiring the services. 
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Note 19: Commitments and Contingencies 

The County participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. The programs are subject to financial and compliance audits. 
The amount of expenditures, if any, which may he disallowed by the granting agency is not determinable at this time; however, County 
officials do not believe that such amounts would be significant. 

Note 20: Subsequent Events 

During October of 2010, the County advance refunded the General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2007A by issuing General 
Obl~~atiun (.n,sso\.cr Rcfund~ng C3pital Ludn Nolrs, Scrics 2UIU A. The purpose oithe refunding wlr; lo obtnln n Iawer lnterest mle on 
Ihc oursrmdlne. debt Ihr Cuunlv will co~it~nuc ro make D ~ I ~ C I D J ~  and intcrest rnvmtnrs due on rhc orlor note, in De~.tnibcr uf?OIU 2nd 
in June of 20il. The County $11 he responsible for the ~edera l  ~hligation~~~ossover ~efunding Capital Loan Notes Series 2010 A 
commencing with the December 1, 2011 interest payment. The refunding and proceeds will be recorded on the County records on 
Decemher 1,201 1. The County was in compliance with the issuance of these notes. 

Note 21: Accounting ChangeRestatement 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.51, Accounting and Financial Renorting for Intangible Assets, was 
implemented during fiscal year 2010. The County had internally generated software in process at June 30, 2009. The software was 
completed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 and placed into service on June 30, 201 0. Beginning net assets and capital assets 
(Conshuction in Process) for governmental activities were restated to rehoactively report intangible assets acquired prior to July 1, 2009, 
as follows: 

Net Canital 
Assets Assets 

Balances June 30,2009, as previously reported $41,761,077 $40,589,346 
Increase for intangible assets, less accumulated amortization 122,130 122,130 

Balances July 1,2009, as restated $41,883,207 $40,711,476 

Note 22: Financial Condition 

We noted the fund balance of the Mental Health Fund was ~n deficrt at the end of the year. 
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CERRO GORIIO COUNTY, IOWA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax 
Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and Permits 
Charges for Service 
Use of Money and Property 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environment and Education 
Roads and Transportation 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administrative Services 
Non-Program 
Debt Service 
Capital Projects 

Total Expenditures 

Less Funds 
Not Required 

Actual To Be Budgeted Net 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (727,980) (58,723) (669,257) 

Other Financing Sources, Net 448,920 45,287 403,633 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over 
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (279,060) (13,436) (265,624) 

Balance Beginning of Year 13,852,880 104,765 13,748,115 

Balance End of Year $13,573,820 $91,329 $13,482,491 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



Final to 
Budgeted Amounts Net Variance - 

Original Final Positive (Negative) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY MFORMATION - 
BUDGETARY REPORTING 
June 30,2010 

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the County Board of Supervisors annually adopts a budget on the modified accrual basis following 
required public notice and hearing for all funds, except blended component units, drainage districts, and agency funds. The budget may 
be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the budget and 
appropriations lapse at year end. 

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon ten major classes of expenditures h o w  as functions, not by fund. Tnese ten functions 
are: public safety and legal services, physical health and social services, mental health, county environment and education, roads and 
transportation, governmental services to residents, administrative services, non-program, debt service and capital projects. Function 
disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund and capital 
projects funds. Although the budget document presents function disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at the aggregated 
function level, not by fund. During the year, a budget amendment increased budgeted revenues and expenditures by $2,852,274 and 
$3,332,623 respectively. This budget amendment is reflected in the final budgeted amounts. 

In addition, annual budgets are similarly adopted in accordance with the Code of Iowa by the appropriate governing body as indicated: 
for the County Extension Office by the County Agricultural Extension Council, for the County Assessor by the County Conference 
Board, for the E911 System by the Joint E911 Service Board and for Emergency Management Services by the County Emergency 
Management Commission. 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, disbursements exceeded the amounts budgeted in the Adrmnistration, Non-Program and Debt 
Service functions. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE RETIREE HEALTH PLAN (M THOUSANDS) 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

See Note 14 in the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements for the plan description, funding policy, annual OPEB costs and Net 
OPEB Obligation, and the funded status and funding progress. 

Year 
Ended 

June 30, 
2009 
2010 

Actuarial 
Valuat~on 

Date 
July 1,2008 
July 1,2008 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 
$0 
$0 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 

@) 
$2,045 
$2,045 

Unfunded 
AAL 

( U r n )  
@-a) 

$2,045 
$2,045 

Funded 
Ratio 
(ah) 
0% 
0% 

Covered 
Payroll 

(c) 
$9,426 
$9,761 

UAAL as a 
Percentage of 

Covered 
Payroll 
(b-a)/(c) 
21.7% 
20.9% 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES M FTJND BALANCES - GENERAL FZTND 
Year ended June 30,2010 

REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax: 

Property Tax 
Local Option Sales Tax 
Utility Tax Replacement Excise Tax 
Other County Tax 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 
Intergovernmental: 

State Shared Revenues 
State Tax Credits 
State and Federal Pass-Thru Revenues: 

Child Support Recovery Incentives 
Human Services Admin~stration Reimbursement 
Other . . . . . . . 

Cot~t r tb~t~ons  I:rum Orhc~ Inrcrgovcmrncnt~l Cnlts 
State Grants and Fnrttlctnents 

Licenses and Permits 
Charges for Service: 

Office Fees and Collections: 
County Auditor 
County Recorder 
County Sheriff 

Auto License, Use Tax and Postage 
Miscellaneous 

Use of Money and Property: 
Interest on Investments 
Miscellaneous 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 
Assessments 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

(Continued) 



CERRO CORD0 COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended June30,2010 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
County Environment and Education 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administration 
Non-Program 
Capital Projects 
Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 1,137,735 

Other Frnancing Sources (Uses): 
Sale of Capital Assets 
Transfers In: 

Mental Health 
Transfers Out: 

Public Health 
Issuance of Revenue BonKapital Lease Purchase Agreement 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over 
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Fund Balance Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance End of Year 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended June 30.2010 

Public Safety and Legal Services: 
Law Enforcement: 

Uniformed Patrol Services 
Law Enforcement Communications 
Adult Correctional Services 
Administration 

Legal Services: 
Criminal Prosecution 
Medical Examinations 
Child Support Recover). 

Emergency Services: 
Emergency Management 

Assistance to District Court System: 
Phys~cal Operahons 
Research and Other Assistance 

Court Proceeding Program: 
Juries and Witnesses 
Detention Services 
court costs 
Service of Civil Papers 

Juvenile Justice Adminishation: 
Juvenile Victim Restitution 
Juvenile Representation Services 
Court-Appointed Attorneys and Court Costs for Juveniles 

Total Public Safety and Legal Services 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Physical Health and Social Services: 
Services to the Poor: 

Administration 
General Welfare Services 

Services to Militarj Veterans: 
Administration 
General Services to Veterans 

Children's and Family Services: 
Youth Guidance 

Chemical Dependency: 
Treatment Services 
Preventive Services 

Total Physical Health and Social Services 

County Environment and Education: 
Conservation and Recreation Services: 

Administration 
Maintenance and Operations 

Animal Conhol : 
Animal Shelter 
Animal Bounties and State Apiarist Expense 

County Development: 
Land Use and Building Controls 
Economic Development 

Total County Environment and Education 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Governmental Senices to Residents: 
Representation Services: 

Elections Administration 
Local Elections 
Township Officials 

State Administrative Services: 
Motor Vehicle Registrations and Licensing 
Recording of Public Documents 

Total Governmental Services to Residents 

Administration: 
Policy and Administration: 

General County Management 
Administratwe Management Services 
Treasury Management Services 
Other Policy and Adminishation 

Central Services: 
General Services 
Data Processing 

Risk Management Services: 
Safety of Workplace 
Fidelity of Public Officers 
Unemployment Compensation 

Total Administration 

Non-Program: 
Other Non-Program Current 

Capital Projects: 
Other Capital Projects 

Total Expenditures 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 

$11,625,106 

(Concluded) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30,2010 

Resource Recorder's General Supplemental 
Enhancement Records Countv Nature Environmental 
and Protection Management Bettennent Center Project 

ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments $89,655 $45,806 ($8,253) $379,593 $15,003 
Receivables: 

Accounts 0 2,468 0 2,835 0 
Accrued Interest 0 17 0 365 0 
Drainage Assessments 0 0 0 0 0 
Due From Other Governments 0 0 10,574 0 0 

Total Assets $89,655 $48,291 $2,321 $382,793 $15,003 

LIABLLITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Pavable 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 0 0 0 667 0 
Due to Other Funds 0 0 0 0 0 
Unearned Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Liabilities 2,560 0 0 1,360 0 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for Endowment 0 0 0 121,711 0 
Reserved for Drainage Warrants 0 0 0 0 0 
Reserved for Trust 0 0 0 0 0 
Unreserved 87,095 48,291 2,321 259,722 15,003 

Total Fund Balances 87,095 48,291 2,321 381,433 15,003 

Total Liabilities and 
Fund Balances $89,655 $48,291 $2,321 $382,793 $15,003 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report, 



Rural Public 
Conservation County Economic Health 

Parks Bettemxnt Development Drainage Inspections Empowerment 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30,2010 

Jail Sheriff 
Commissarv Sheriff Sheriff Abandoned 

ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Accrued Interest 
Drainage Assessments 
Due From Other Governments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 
Due to Other Funds 
Unearned Revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for Endowment 
Reserved for Drainage Warrants 
Reserved for Trust 
Unreserved 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and 
Fund Balances 

Profits Forfeiture Tobacco Vehicle 

$5,692 $66,849 $1,535 $616 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



Jail Shand Conservation 
Sheriff Phone Attorney Estate Land Acquisition 
DARE Profits Forfeiture Trust Trust Total 

(Concluded) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

(10\Il5INIS(;  SCIIEDL L E  01; REVESUES,  EXPE'SI)ITl'RES A N D  
CH.4NC;ES IS FUXD B.\I..&VCES - NOYnl,\.lOR CO\'EKSnlENTAI.  F U S D S  -~~ ~ -~ ----..-- 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Resource Recorder's General Supplemental 
Enhancement Records County Nature Environmental 
and Protection Management Betterment Center Project 

REVENUES: 
Local Option Sales Tax 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and Permits 
Charges For Service 
Use of Money and Property 
Fines. Forfeitures and Defaults 
~ i s c e ~ ~ a n e o u s  

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
County Environment and Education 20,578 0 2;500 47,159 0 
Governmental Services to Residents 0 13,965 0 0 0 
Administrat~on 0 0 20,668 0 0 
Non-Progam 0 0 0 0 0 

Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 
Total  Expenditures 20,578 13,965 81,106 47,159 0 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): . . 
Issuance of ~ r a i n a ~ e  Warrants 
Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other 
Financing Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 12,887 (4,396) (9,873) 19,261 15,003 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 74,208 52,687 12,194 362,172 0 

Fund Balances End of Year $87,095 $48,291 $2,321 $381,433 $15,003 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



Rural Public 
Conservation County Economic Health 

Parks Betterment Development Drainage Inspections Empowerment 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CO\IRININC; SCIIEDULE OF KEVEiXCES, EXPENDI'I'URES A S D  
CIIANGES IN FUND B.\L?\TCES - NOK\I,Z.IOH COVERN3IEN'I',ZI. FCNDS ~~ ~ -------.-- 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

REVENUES: 
Local Option Sales Tax 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and Permits 
Charges For Service 
Use of Money and Property 
Fines, Forfeitures and Defaults 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
County Environment and Education 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administration 
Non-Program 

Debt Service 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
O v a  (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds From Drainage Warrants 
Total Other Financing Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other 
Financing Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances End of Year 

Jail Sheriff 
Commissary Sheriff Sheriff Abandoned 

Profits Forfeiture Tobacco Vehicle 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



Conservation 
Ja~l  Strand Land 

Sher~ff Phone Attorney Estate Acqu~s~tlon 
DARE Profits Folfeihue Grant Trust Total 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $498,630 
0 0 0 0 0 895,660 
0 0 0 0 0 365,386 
0 0 0 0 0 110,152 
0 19,093 0 588 580 70,402 
0 0 3,875 0 0 42,893 
0 0 0 0 0 88,238 
0 19,093 3,875 588 580 2,071,361 

(Concluded) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - INTERNAL SERVlCE FUNDS 
June 30,2010 

Central Health - - ~  

Services Insurance Total 
ASSETS 

Cash and Pooled Inveshnents 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Due From other Governments 

Total Assets $88,546 $294,509 $383,055 

LIABILITIES 
Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Net Assets 
Unresh-icted 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CO\lBlfiIN(; SC1IEVI.I.F. OF RE\'EKI!ES, EXI1E.VSI.:S ASD 
CH,\fiGES IY I.'IJNV YETASSEI'S - ISTEKS.\L SER\'ICE FUSVS 

Central Health 
Services Insurance Total 

OPERATLNG REVENUES: 
Interfund Services Provided $282,685 $2,379,021 $2,661,706 
Paments from Emnlovees 0 122,695 122,695 . . 
~~sce l l aneous  

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Health Insurance: 

Medical Claims Paid 
Insurance Premiums 
Adminishative Fees 
Miscellaneous 

Central Services: 
Telephone 
Insurance 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES: 
Interest 

Net Income (Loss) 

Net Assets Beginning of Year 

Net Assets End of Year 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Central Health 
Services Insurance Total 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES: 
Cash Received from Other Funds $288,093 $2,245,877 $2,533,970 
Cash Received from Employees &Others 3,365 248,370 251,735 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Senrices (288,673) (2,437,925) (2,726,598) 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 2,785 56,322 59,107 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Interest Income 0 17 17 

Net Increase in Cash 2,785 56,339 59,124 

Cash Beginning of Year 

Cash End of Year 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATWG INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Owatinz Income (Loss) 

, . " ~ ~~ 

(Increase) Decrease in Receivables 
Increase (Decrease) in Payables 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND 
LIABEITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
June 30,2010 

Elected 
Officials Other Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments: 

County Treasurer $0 $3,007,160 $3,007,160 
Other County Officials 239,354 0 239,354 

Receivables: 
Property Tax: 

Delinquent 0 2,199 2,199 
Succeeding Year 0 51,648,037 51,648,037 

Accounts 250 4,810 5,060 
Assessments 0 1,129,230 1,129,230 

Due From Other Governments 0 161,186 161,186 

Total Assets $239,604 $55,952,622 $56,192,226 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $0 $49,469 $49,469 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 0 16,927 16,927 
Due to Other Governments 87 55,821,278 55,821,365 
Trusts Payable 239,517 43,796 283,313 
Compensated Absences 0 21,152 21,152 

Total Liabilities $239,604 $55,952,622 $56,192,226 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES - ELECTED OFFICIALS 
June 30,2010 

Relief 
Representative Veterans 

Payee Affairs Recorder Sheriff Total 
ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments: 

Other County Oficials $74,017 $998 ($163) $164,502 $239,354 
Receivables: 

Accounts 0 0 250 0 250 

Total Assets $74,017 $998 $87 $164,502 $239,604 

LIABILITIES 
Due to Other Governments $0 $0 $87 $0 $87 
Trusts Payable 74,017 998 0 164,502 239,517 

Total Liabilities $74,017 $998 $87 $164,502 $239,604 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES - OTHER AGENCY FUNDS 
June 30,2010 

Agricultural County 
Extension County Special City 
Education Assessor Appraisal Assessor 

ASSETS -.. - 

Cash and Pooled Inveshnents: 
County Treasurer $2,987 $278,55 1 $291,697 $68,964 

Receivables: 
Property Tax: 

Delinquent 9 20 15 5 
Succeeding Year 209,616 299,621 225,360 197,484 

Accounts 0 1,242 0 0 
Assessments 0 0 0 0 
Due From Other Governments 0 0 0 0 

Total Assets $212,612 $579,434 $517,072 $266,453 

LIABILlTIES 
Accounts Payable $0 $3,715 $1,115 $1,936 
Salanes and Benefits Payable 0 6,669 2,308 4,626 
Due to Other Governments 212,612 555,642 5 13,649 256,165 
Trusts Payable 0 0 0 0 
Compensated Absences 0 13,408 0 3,726 

Total Liabilities $212,612 $579,434 $51 7,072 $266,453 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



City City 
Special Community Special 

Appraisal Schools Colleges Corporations Townships Assessments 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES - OTHER AGENCY FUNDS (Continued) 
June 30,2010 

Auto Brucellosis and Joint County 
License and Tuberculosis Disaster Clear Lake EMS 

Use Tax Eradication Services Sanitary Association 
ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments: 

County Treasurer $963,314 $3,271 $167,894 $21,591 $4,903 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 0 0 0 0 0 
Succeeding Year 0 6,648 0 759,692 0 

Accounts 0 0 0 0 0 
Assessments 0 0 0 54,774 0 
Due From Other Governments 0 0 161,186 0 0 

Total Assets $963,314 $9,919 $329,080 $836,057 $4,903 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $0 $0 $39,792 $0 $2,606 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 0 0 1,849 0 0 
Due to Other Governments 963,314 9,919 287,439 836,057 2,297 
Trusts Payable 0 0 0 0 0 
Compensated Absences 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Liabilities 



Advanced 
Law Enforcement Recorder's 

Advance Cash D~spute E911 Investigative and Transfer Employee 
Tax LongIShort Resolution Operations Administrative System Fee Benefits Total 

(Concluded) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS 
AND LIABILITIES -ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Elected Officials 
Balance Balance 

July 1,2009 Additions Deductions June 30,2010 
ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments: 

Other County Officials 
Receivables: 

Accounts 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to Other Governments 
Trusts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

Other Agency Funds 
Balance Ralancr - -~ .-.. . 

July 1,2009 Additions Deductions June 30,2010 
ASSETS 
Cash and Pooled Investments: 

County Treasurer $2,687,905 $12,440,456 $12,121,201 $3,007,160 
Receivables: 

Properly Taw: 
Delinquent 1,387 2,199 1,387 2,199 
Succeeding Year 47,651,526 51,648,037 47,651,526 51,648,037 

Accounts 5,699 4,810 5,699 4,810 
Due From Other Governments 1,088,693 1,129,230 1,088,693 1,129,230 
Assessments 239,338 161,186 239,338 161,186 

Total Assets $51,674,548 $65,385,918 $61,107,844 $55,952,622 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $378,959 $49,469 $378,959 $49,469 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 14,515 16,927 14,515 16,927 
Due to Other Governments 51,211,749 65,254,574 60,645,045 55,821,278 
Trusts Payable 47,562 43,796 47,562 43,796 
Compensated Absences 21,763 21,152 21,763 21,152 

Total Liabilities $51,674,548 $65,385,918 $61,107,844 $55,952,622 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
CO>IBINIY(; SCllEDCLE Ol.'CIIANCES IN FIUIJCI.AKY ASSETS 
AND LI.\BII.ITIES - ELEC'TED OFFICIALS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Relief 
Representative Veterans 

Payee Affairs Auditor Recorder Sheriff Total 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
Balance Beginning of Year $74,486 $998 $0 $47 $188,898 $264,429 

Additions: 
Office Fees and Collections 0 0 2,902 793,696 1,067,631 1,864,229 
Trusts 375,896 0 0 0 284,076 659,972 

Total Additions 375,896 0 2,902 793,696 1,35 1,707 2,524,201 

Deductions: 
Agency Remittances: 

To County Funds 0 0 2,902 321,898 106,958 431,758 
To Other Governments 0 0 0 471,233 732 471,965 
Trusts Paid Out 376,365 0 0 525 1,268,413 1,645,303 

Total Deductions 376,365 0 2,902 793,656 1,376,103 2,549,026 

Balance End of Year $74,017 $998 $0 $87 $164,502 $239,604 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS 
AND LIABILITIES - OTHER AGENCY FONDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Agricultural County 
Extension Countv Svecial Citv 
Education Assessor Appraisal Assessor 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - 

Balance Beginning of Year 

Additions: 
Property and Other County Tax 
E911 Surcharge 
State Tax Credits 
Auto Licenses, Use Tax and Postage 
Assessments 
T ~ s t s  
Miscellaneous 

Total Additions 

Deductions: 
Agency Remittances: 

To Other Governments 
Trusts Paid Out 

Total Deductions 

Balance End of Year $212,612 $579,434 $5 17,072 $266,453 

See Accompanyng Independent Auditors' Report. 



City City Auto 
Special Community Special License and 

Appraisal Schools Colleges Corporations Townships Assessments Use Tax 

$70,844 $25,476,827 $1,210,187 $1 9,599,180 $212,924 $1,054,248 $878,604 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS 
AND LIABILITIES - OTHER AGENCY FUNDS (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Brucellosis 
and Joint County 

Tuberculosis Disaster Clear Lake EMS Advance 
Eradication Services Sanitary Association Tax 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
Balance Beginning of Year $5,859 $284,550 $829,049 $12,083 $51,059 

Additions: 

Property and Other County Tax 16,733 0 746,421 0 0 
E911 Surcharge 0 0 0 0 0 
State Tax Credits 181 0 14,438 0 0 
Auto Licenses, Use Tax and Postage 0 0 0 0 0 
Assessments 0 0 56,363 0 0 
Trusts 0 0 0 0 13.763 
M~scellaneous 0 840,613 0 3,276 0 

Total Additions 16,914 840,613 817,222 3,276 13,763 

Deductions: 
Agency Remittances: 

To Other Governments 12,854 796,083 810,214 10,456 0 
Trusts Paid Out 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Deductions 12,854 796,083 810,214 10,456 0 

Balance End of Year $9,919 $329,080 5836,057 $4,903 $64,822 



Advanced Law 
Enforcement 

Investigative and Recorder's 
Cash Tax Sale Dispute E911 Administrative Transfer Employee 

LongiShort Redemption Resolution Operations System Fee Benefits Total 

$786 $0 $30,201 $353,700 $29,159 $5,173 ($21,026) $55,952,622 

(Concluded) 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCBEDULE OF CAPITAZ, ASSETS BY FUNDING SOURCE 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Balance Balance 
June 30,2009 Addllions D~sposals June 30,2010 

ASSETS 
Land 

Construction in Process 

Buildings and Structures 
hqrovements other than Buildings 

Machinery and Equipment 

Licensed Vehicles 
inlangibles 

Infiastnrcture 

FUNDING SOURCE 
General Fund 
Spec~al Revenue Funds 

Capital Project Fund 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL. ASSETS 
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
AS OF JUM? 30,2010 

Construckon Buildmzs and u 

Land in Process Structures 
Pnbhc Safety and heal Servlces 

Law Enrorcement 
Legal Services - 

Tutal Public Safety and Legal Services 13,273,609 

Physical Health and Social Services: 
Physical Health Services 
Services to Poor 
Services to Military Veterans 

Total Physical Health and Social Services 

Mental Health: 
Persons with Chromc Menial Illness 

Total Mental Health 

County Environment and Education 
Enwonmental Quality Program 
Conservation and Recreation Servlces 
County Development 

Total County Environment and Edueatlon 150,798 490,292 

Roads and Transpodailon 
Secondary Roads A h i s t r a t l o n  and Engmeermg 
Roadway Mamtenanw: 
General Roadway Expenditures 

Total Roads and Transportation 

State and Local Government Servlces 
Representailon Servlces 
State Admistratlon Semces 

Total State and Local Government Sermces 

Jnterprogram Servlces 
Pollcy and Adrmmstration 
Central Servlces 

Total Interprogram Services 

Total Capital Assets $ 1,646,392 537,575 $ 17,128,410 



Improvements other Machinery and Licensed 
than Buildings Equipment Vehicles Intangibles Infrastructure Total 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCaEDULE OF W G E S  IN CAPITAL ASSETS 
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Balance Balance 
June 30,2009 Addltlons Delet~ons June 30,2010 

Publlc Safety and Legdl Servlces 
Law Enforcement $ 14,908,960 $ 114,782 $ 754,741 $ 14,269,001 
Legal Servlces 34,237 34,237 

Total Public Safety and Legal Services 14,943,197 114,782 754,741 14,303,238 

Physical Health and Social Services: 
Physical Health Services 
Services to Poor 
Servlces to M~l~ ta ry  Veterans 

Total Physical Health and Socral Sernces 333,117 5,385 338,502 

Mental Health: 
Persons with Chromc Mental illness 36,074 16,776 19,298 

Total Mental Health 36,074 16,776 19,298 

County Enwoment  and Eduwt~on 
Envlronmenial Qual~ty Program 
Conservation and Recreation Servlces 
County Development 15,798 15,798 

Total County Envrronment and Education 1,262,402 18,282 23,950 1,256,734 

Roads and Transportat~on 
Seandary Roads Admrolslrat~on and 

Engmeermg 491,248 491,248 
Roadway Mamtenance 35,072,076 4,912,959 1,263,939 38,721,096 
General Roadway Expend~twes 7,438,554 72,208 59,053 7,451,709 

Total Roads and Transportat~on 43,001,878 4,985,167 1,322,992 46,664,053 

Government Servlces to Residents 
Representahon Servlces 436,117 150,053 108,622 477,548 
State Adrmmstrat~on Servlces 55,707 55,707 

Total Government Services to Residents 491,824 150,053 108,622 533,255 

Admrolstrat~on 
Pol~cy and Admrolstrat~on 
Central Serv~ces 

Total Admlnistratron 

Total Cepital Assets $ 65,645,655 $ 5,736,270 $ 2,763,767 68,618,158 



CERRO GORLlO COUNTY, IOWA 

This part of Ceno Gordo County's comprehensive annual fmancial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding 
what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the County's 
overall financial health. 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contan trend information to help the reader understand how the County's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over tune 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contam rnfomatlon to help the reader assess the County's most significant 
local revenue source, the propcrty tax. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to help the readers assess the affordability of the 
County's current levels of outstand~ng debt and the County's ab111ty to issue addit~onal debt 
in the future 

- .  
the environment m t h ~ n  which the County's fmancial activltles take place 

Operating Information 
These schedules contan semce and rnfrastructure data to help the reader understand how 
the lnformatlon m the County's financial report relates to the servlces the County provldes 
and the actlv~tles it pe r fom 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT 
Last Eight Fiscal Years* 
(Accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Flscal Year 
2003 2004 2005 

Government actimhes 

Invested m capltal assets, net ofrelated debt $ 8,363,575 $ 9,761,714 $ 13,727,858 
Restricted 4,630,537 3,241,336 3,083.406 
Unrestricted 4,357,591 4,610,114 3,600,840 

TOM Government act~mtles net assets $ 17,351,703 $ 17,613,164 $ 20,412,104 

Busmess-type actlmtilles 
Invested m cap~tal assets, net of related debt $ 460,966 $ 1,924,793 $ 1,748,701 
Reskcted 
Unrestricted 1,483,044 44,199 132,894 

Total Busmess-type act~mt~es net assets $ 1,944,010 $ 1,968,992 $ 1,881,595 

Primary Government 
Invested m cap~tal assets, net of related debt $ 8,824,541 $ 11,686,507 $ 15,476,559 
Restricted 4.630.537 3.241.336 3.083.406 
Unrestricted 5,840,635 4,654,313 3,733,734 

Total Busmess-type actmt~es net assets $ 19,295,713 $ 19,582,156 $ 22,293,699 

*Cerro Gordo County, Iowa mplemented GASB 34 m FY2003 

Source County Records 



F~scal Year 
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Last Elght Fiscal Years* 
(Accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Flscal Year 
2003 2004 2005 

Expenses: 

Government activities: 
Public safety and legal services 
Physical health and social services 
Mental health 
County environment and education 
Roads and transportation 
Govement services to residents 
Administration or general government 
Non-program 
luterest on long-term debt 
Capital projects 

Total governmental activities 
expenses 

Business-twe activities: 
- A  

Wastewater collect~on and treatment 71,877 126,426 248,320 
Total government expenses $ 21,080,571 $ 23,403,408 $ 24,638,849 

Program Revenues: 
Government activities: 

Charges for services: 
F'ublic safety and legal services 
Physical bealth and social services 
Mental health 
County environment and education 
Roads and Transporiation 
Government services to residents 
Administration or general government 
Non-program 
Capital Projects 

Operating grants and conlributions 
Capital grants and wntnbut~ons 792,603 2,445,455 

Total governmental actlvlt~es 10,648,353 11,772,522 14,969,577 

Business-type activities: 
Charees for services: 

Wastewater collechon and treatment 368,340 151,408 160,923 
Total busmness-type act~vlt~es 368,340 151,408 160,923 
Total govement progam $ 11,016,693 $ 11,923,930 $ 15,130,500 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CEIANGES IN NET ASSETS (Continued) 
Last Seven Fiscal Years* 
(Accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Flscal Year 
2003 2004 2005 

Net (Expense)/Revenue 

Governmental act~vltles $ (10,360,341) $ (11,504,460) $ (9,420,952) 
Busmess-type act~vlt~es 296,463 24,982 (87,397) 

Total government net expense $ (10,063,878) $ (11,479,478) $ (9,508,349) 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets: 
Governmental activities 

Property and other county tax levied for: 
General purposes $ 8,551,715 $ 8,788,746 $ 9,443,597 
Debt service 170,744 374,667 

Penalty and interest on property tax 117,361 106,704 126,247 
State tax credits, unrestricted 965,074 399,747 422,743 
Local option sales and service tax 1,454,813 1,769,845 1,228,557 
Unreshicted grants and contributions 23,202 198,621 45,959 
Unrestricted investment ewnings 278,751 142,318 275,773 
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 
Miscellaneous 283,284 298,337 302,349 

Total governmental activities 11,844,944 11,704,318 12,219,892 

Business-type activities: 
Wastewater collection and treatment 12,353 

Total business-type activities $ 12,353 $ $ 
Total government $ 11,857,297 $ 11,704,318 $ 12,219,892 

Changes m Net Assets 
Governmental act~vltles $ 1,484,603 $ 199,858 $ 2,798,940 
Busmess-type act~vltles 308,816 24,982 (87,397) 

Total governmcnt program $ 1,793,419 $ 224,840 $ 2,711,543 

*Cerro Gordo County, Iowa implemented GASB 34 in FY2003 

Source: County Records 



Fiscal Year 
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

(Continued) 



F~scal Year 
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

(Concluded) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Momfied accrual accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

General Fund 

Reserved 
Unreserved 

Total General Fund 

Fiscal Year 
2001 2002 2003 2004 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Reserved for 

Debt Servlce $ 58,733 $ 93,479 $ 78,070 $ 75,186 
Inventones, endowment & other 1,074,354 1,225,885 1,228,790 1,217,766 

Unreserved, reported m 
Special revenue funds 2,513,650 2,876,136 3,786,949 3,908,195 
Capital Project funds 74,047 32,138 35,713 884,846 

Total all other governmental h d s  $ 3,720,784 $ 4,227,638 $ 5,129,522 $ 6,085,993 

Source County Records 



Fiscal Year 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified accrual accounting) 

Revenues 

Property and Other County Tax 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 

Intergovernmental 

Licenses and P e m t s  

Charges for Services 

Use of Money and Property 
M~scellaneous 

Total Rovenues 

Expenditures: 
Public safety and legal services 
Physical health and social services 
Mental health 
County environment and education 
Roads and transportation 
Government services to residents 
Administration 
Non-program 
Debt service 

Interest 
Principal 

Capital projects 
Total Expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds fiom the sale of capital assets 
Tr-fers in 
Transfers out 
Proceeds iiom drainage warrants 
Issuance of capital lease purchase agreement 
Issuance of LOSST revenue bonds 
Issuance of installment purchase contracts 
General obligation nates issued 
Discount on general obligation notes 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Debt service as % of noncapital expenditures 

F~scal Year 
2001 2002 2003 2004 

Source: County Records 



F~scal Year 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

PROGRAM REVENUES BY FUNCTIONIPROGRAM 
Last Eight Fiscal Years* 
(Accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Flscal Year 
2003 2004 2005 

Government achvlt~es 
Public safety and legal services 
Physical health and social services 
Mental health 
County environment and education 
Roads and Transportation 
Government services to residents 
Administration or general government 
Non-program 
Capital Projects 

Total Governmental activities 
program revenues 10,648,353 11,772,522 14,969,577 

Business-type activities: 
Wastewater collection and treatment 368,340 151,408 160,923 

Total business-type activities 
program revenues 368,340 151,408 160,923 
Total government propun $ 11,016,693 $ 11,923,930 $ 15,130,500 

*Cerro Gordo County, Iowa unplemented GASB 34 m FY2003 

Sourco County Rewrds 



Fiscal Year 
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (1) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited) 

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Fiscal Year Residential Commercial Industrial Ag~cultural 
Ended June 30 Property Property Propem Property 

Taxable Value of Property 

Fiscal Year Resldentlal Commercial Induslslal ~ c u l l u r a l  
Ended June 30 Property Property Property Property 

Source. Cerro Gordo County Auditor's Office 

(1) Net Taxable Value is the value on which real estate taxes are calculated and on which budgets of the various Levy 
Authorities are based. Far property valued by local assessors, taxable value of property is thc actual value of property multiplied 

by the statewide rollback rate that is determined annually by the Iowa Department of Management. 

(2) Other Property includes utility property, railroad property, and gas and electric utility property, all of which are valued 
by the Iowa Department of Management. All other property classes are valued by the local assessor. 

(3) Per $1,000 of value 



Assessed Value and  Actual Value of Taxable Property 

(2) Total Assessed Less Mdltary Net Assessed 
TIF Other Taxable Tax-Exempt Taxable 

Increment Property Property Property Property 

Taxable Value of Property 

(3)  . . 
(2) Less: Military Total Direct 

TIF Other Total Taxable Tax-Exempt Net Taxable Tax Rate 
hcrement Property Property Property Property Urban 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

DTRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(rate per $1,000 of assessed value) 

(Unaudited) 

County Direct Rates: 

General Basic 

General Supplemental 

MHDD Service 

Fiscal Year Taxes are Payable 
2001 2002 2Q03 2004 

Debt Semce 0 32 0 11 0 11 

Total Urban County Rate 5 14 4 70 4 70 4 59 
Rural Basic 3 32 3 13 3 13 3 13 

Total Rural County Rate 8 46 7 83 7 83 7 73 

Clty and Town Rates 
Mason Clty 
Clear Lake 
Dougherty 
Mesenrey 
Plymouth 
Rock Falls 
Rockwell 
Swaledale 
Thorntan 
Venlura 
Nora Spmgs 

Townshp Rates 
Bath 
Clear Lake 
Dougherty 
Falls 
Geneaeo 
Grant - Clear Lake 
Grant -Forest Clty 
Grant - Venturn 
Crimes 
Lake 
Llme Creek 
Lincoln 
Mason 
Mount Vernon 
Owen 
Pleasant Valley 
Portland 
Union 

Source. Cerro Gordo County Auditors Office 



Flscal Year Taxes are Payable 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

(Continued) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

DIRECT AM) OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES (Continued) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(rate per $1,000 of assessed value) 

(Unaudited) 

School D l s ~ c t  Rates: 
Clear Lake 
Forest City 
Mason City 
Meservey-Thornton 
Nora Spnngs-Rock Falls 
North Central 
Rockwell-Swaledale 
Rudd-Rockford-Marble R 
SheffieldChapm 
Ventura 

ock 

Other Taxmg Authonty Rates 
County Assessor 
Clty Assessor 
North Iowa Area Conmmty College 
Ag Extension 
State 
Clear Lake Smtary Sewer 
Falls -Rock Falls Cemetery 
Benefited Lightlug Distr~ct 

Fiscal Year Taxes are Payable 
2001 2002 2003 2004 

Source: Cerm Gordo County Auditors Office 



Flscal Year Taxes are Payable 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

(Concluded) 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 20 10 
Percent of 

Net Total 
Taxable Taxable 
Value Rank Value 

Interstate Power & Light Co $ 85,636,879 1 4.06% 
Golden Grain Energy LLC 45,508,778 2 2.16% 
Five Star Cooperative 20,486,638 3 0.97% 
Ag Processing Inc 19,143,614 4 0.91% 
Lehigh Portland Cement Ca 18,679,086 5 0.89% 
Union Pacific 15,364,956 6 0.73% 
AADG Inc (Curries Company) 14,878,017 7 0.71% 
1-lolcim (US) Inc 13,418,720 8 0.64% 
Hawkeye Power Partners LLC 12,793,65 1 9 0.61% 
Quest Corp 11,558,204 10 0.55% 
General Foods Corporation 
Mall Associates LLC 
US WesVIiorthwestern Bell 
Mason City Shopping Center 
CAG Subsidary (Con &a) 

$ 257,468,543 12.22% 

Net Taxable Value is the value on which real estate taxes are calculated 
and on which the budgets of the vanious Levy Authorities are based. 

Fiscal Year 2001 
Percent of 

Net Total 
Taxable Taxable 
Value Rank Value 

Source Cerro Gordo County Auditor's OEce 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Pmperty Taxes 
Collected Within the Property Tax Properly Taxes 

Fiscal Year Property Taxes Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date 

Ended Levied for the Percentage Subsequent Percentage 
June 30 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy 

2001 $ 39,666,372 $ 39,603,479 99.84% $ 8,684 $ 39,612,163 99.86% 
2002 42,976,436 42,543,086 98.99% 18,382 42,561,468 99.03% 
2003 44,383,926 44,169,153 99.52% 8,059 44,177,212 99.53% 
2004 44,544,314 42,566,151 95.56% 144,700 42,710,851 95.88% 
2005 47,203,216 45,252,976 95.87% 24,111 45,277,087 95.92% 
2006 51,164,802 49,185,934 96.13% -3,149 49,182,785 96.13% 
2007 54,025,405 52,028,179 96.30% 16,638 52,044,817 96.33% 
2008 55,911,709 53,942,250 96.48% 36,357 53,978,607 96.54% 
2009 58,154,094 56,220,505 96.68% 4,747 56,225,252 96.68% 
2010 61,066,901 59,136,632 96.84% 13,163 59,149,795 96.86% 

Total tax collections solely for Cemo Gorda County were 

Fiscal Year 

200 1 
2002 

2003 

2004 
2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 
2010 

Source: Cerro Gordo County Treasurer's Office 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Business-Type 
Governmental Activities Activities 

Percentage of 
General Capital Sewer Revenue Personal Per 

Fiscal Obligation Capital Loan Lease Revenue Capital Loan Total Income Capita 
Year Bonds Notes Purchases Bonds Notes Government (1) (1) 

1. Calculated using population and personal income figures &om Demographics and Economic Statistics Table. 
* Information not yet available. 

Source: Ceno Gordo County Auditor's Office 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Percentage 
General Bonded Debt Outslandlng Net Taxable 

General Value of Per Caplla 
Fiscal Year Obligation Bonds Total Property (1) (2) 

1. See Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property Schedule for property value data. 
2. Calculated using population figure fiom Demogaphics and Economic Statistics Table. 

Source Cerro Gordo County Au&torrs Office 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 
As of June 30,2010 

(Unaudited) 
Es tmted  

E s h t e d  Share of 
Percentage Overlapping 

Governmental Umt Debt Outstandmg Applicable Debt 

County direct debt 

City debt 
Clear Lake 
Mason C ~ t y  
Nora Spnngs 
Thomton 
Ventura 

Total Clty debt 

School D~stncts 
Clear Lake 
Forest City 
Mason City 
Nora Sprmgs-Rock Falls 
Norfh Central 
RockwellSwaledale 
SheiEeld-Chapin 

Total School Distnct debt 

Other Districts: 
Clear Lake Sanitary District 
North Iowa Area Community College 

Total Other District debt 

Subtotal, overlapping debt 

Total direct and overlappillg debt 

Source: Cities and school districts within Cerro Gordo County 



CEIilCO GQRDQ COUNTY, IOWA 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN  ORM MAT ION 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Debt L m t ,  5% ofAssessed Value 107,912,790 112,656,798 118,713,033 122,439,191 

Total net debt apphcable to l m t  930,000 635,000 400,000 1,460,000 

Legal Debt Mar@ $ 106,982,790 $ 112,021,798 $ 118,313,033 $ 120,979,191 

Total net debt applicable to the limt 
as apercentage of debt h i  0 86% 0 56% 0 34% 1 19% 

Source: County rewrds 



Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2010 

Net Assessed Value $ 3,695,693,542 

Debt Limit (5% of assessed value) 184,784,677 
Debt applicable to limit: 

General obligation capital loan notes 11,470,000 
LOS&ST Revenue Bonds 401,750 

Cap~tal leases 117,605 

Total net debt appl~cable to l m t  11,989,355 
Legal debt margin $ 172,795,322 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

DEMOGRAPEEC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 
Last Ten Calendar Years 
(Unaudited) 

Personal Per Caplta 
Income Personal Farm School Unemployment 

Populat~on (000,s) Incame Proprietors Emmllment Rate 
Year (1) (2) (2) (2) (3) (4) 

(1) U.S. Census Bureau. 

(2) Bureau of Economic Analysis, US. Department of Co-erce 
(3) School districts in Cerro Gordo County. 
(4) Iowa Workforce Development 
* hformation not yet available. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

PRJXCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 
(Unau&ted) 

Percent of 
Total County 

Employees Rank Employment 

Mercy Medical Center North Iowa 
Cmies Graham 
Opportunity Village 
Hy-Vee Food Stores 
Mason City Community School District 
Principal Financial Group 
Wal-Mad Stores 
Good Shepherd Geriatrics Center 
City of Mason City 
Kraft Foods 
Woodharbor Doors and Cabinetry, Inc. 
Cole Sewell Corporation 
IMI Cornelius 
Armour Food Co. 

Percent of 
Total County 

Employees Rank Employment 

Source: Number of Employees provided by Mason City Economic Development Corporation. Total Cerro Gordo County labor 
force provided by Iowa Workforce Development. 

Note: Only actual number of employees for the current year is available. For prior years, only range of employees is available. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FTlNCTION/PROGRAM 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Shenff 

Attorney 

Ciuld Support Recovery 

Physical Health and Social Services: 

Health Department 44.00 46.00 51.00 49.00 
General Relief 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 
Veteran Affairs 1.75 1.75 1.75 1.75 

Mental Health 
CPC 

Case Management 

County Environment and Education: 

Conservation 

Planning and Zoning: 

Roads and Transportation 
Englnecr 

Roadsrdes 

Governmental Servlces to Residents 
Treasurer, motor vehicles 

Recorder 

Au&tor, elect~ons 

Administration: 

Board of Supervisors 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.50 
Auditor 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50 
Treasurer, tax 3.80 2.40 2.40 2.40 
MIS 7.00 7.00 7.00 6.00 

Courthouse Maintenance 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 
Safety 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 

Persounel 0.50 050 0.50 0.50 

Total 205 211 222 221 

Source County Records 



Fiscal Year 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

OPERATINGINDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unauhted) 

Flscal Year 
Funct~on/Program 2001 2002 2003 2004 

Puhl~c Safety and L e d  Services - 
Sheriff 

Weapon permits issued 
Number of Jail bookings 
Civil Papers Served 
Service Calls 
Number of Arrests 
Citations and Warnings issued 

Attorney 
Number cases filed: 

Felony 
Indictable Misdemeanor 
Juvenile 

Physical Health and Social Services: 
Health Department: 

Number of immunizations 6,738 5,685 5,393 6,578 

Number nursing clients 541 411 435 370 

Number nursing visits 5,677 5,714 5,503 5,864 

Number Home care aide clients 261 247 341 259 

Number Homo w e  aide service hours 13,984 14,133 16,431 13,858 

Number of food inspections 3,147 3,105 2,815 2,469 

Mental Health 
CPC Persons served 884 934 1,003 1,019 

County Environment and Education: 
Conservation: 

Number of camper nights 
Conservation programs presented 
People attending programs 

Planning and Zoning: 
Zoning Permits issued 
Board of Adjustment cases 

Roads and Transportation: 
Engineer: Miles maintained 

Governmental Services to Residents: 
Treasurer: Titles issued 
Recorder: Documents recorded 
Auditor: 

Registered voters 
Absentee ballots requested 

Source: County Records 



F~scal Year 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTIONITROCRAM 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
Funct~onlPmmm 2001 2002 2003 2004 

Publ~c Safety and Legal Serv~ces 
Sheriff. 

Number of vehicles 18 20 21 22 

Physical Health and Social Services 
Health Department: 

Number of vehicles 

County Enwonment and Education 
Conservation 

Number af park areas 29 29 30 30 

Total acres -aged 2,962 2,962 3,024 3,024 

Number of vehcles 15 15 15 15 

Roads and Transportation 
Enpeer  

Number of vehicles 
Number of bmldmgs 

Governmental Servlces to Res~dents 
Audltor, elections 

Number of wting ma.chmes 

Source: Various County Departments. 

Note: Several programs do not have capital assets specific to their area and have been eliminated fiomthis schedule. 

* Be-ing in FY2009, tandem trucks and single axle trucks were classified as vehicles. 



F~scal Year 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 
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CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES BY SOURCE AND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION - 
ALL WVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Years Ended June 30, 

Mod~fied Accrual Basis 

2010 2009 2008 2007 

Revenues 

Property and other County Tax $ 
Interest and Penalty on property tax 

Intergovernmental 

L~censes and p e m t s  

Charges for servlces 

Use ofmoney and property 
Fmes, forfe~tures, and defaults 

Miscellaneous 

Total $ 31,624,003 31,473,714 29,433,465 29,842,477 

Expenditures: 
Operating: 

Public safety and legal services 

Physical health and social services 

Mental I-Iealth 
County environment and education 

Roads and transportation 

Governmental services to residents 

Administrative services 
Non-program 

Debt service 
Capital projects 

Total $ 32,303,980 30,584,701 35,886,368 34,329,688 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 



Mod~fied Accrual Bas~s 
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 
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en 
Certified Public Accountants  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

To the Officials of Cerro Gordo County 
Mason C~ ty ,  Iowa 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Cerro Gordo County, lowa as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, 
which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements listed in the table of contents and have issued our report 
thereon dated December 22, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance witb U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Cerro Gordo 
County's basic financial statemcnts. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, required by the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments. and Non-Profit Orsanizations, 
which is the responsibility of the County's management, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. The information in that schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects when considered in relation 
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees and citizcns of 
Cerro Gordo County and other parties to whom Cerro Gordo County may report including federal awarding agencies and pass- 
through entities. This report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

December 22,2010 

120 

PO. Box 216 Charles City, IA 50616-0216 .Phone: (641) 228-7096 'Fax: (641) 228-7103 .www.gardinercpa.com 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Agency or 
CFDA Pass-Through Program 

GrantorlProgram Number Number Expenditures 
Direct: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Office of Pollution Prevention and Toxic Substances 

Research, Development, Monitoring, Public Education, 
Training, Demonstration and Studies - Childhood Lead 

Reduction 

Indirect: 
U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Iowa Department of Iluman Services 
Human Services Administrative Reimbursements 

State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program 10.561 

U S Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Iowa Department of Econom~c Development 

Jumpstart Disaster Recovery Housing Program 
Jumpstart Disaster Recovery Housing Program 
Disaster Busmess Rental Assistance Program 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Iowa Department of Justice 

Violence Against Women 
Violence Against Women 
ARRA - Violence Against Women 

Iowa Office of Drug Control Policy 
ARRA - Byrne-Justice Assistance Grant 

Nat~onal Highway Traffic Safety Adnnmstration 
Iowa Department of Transportation 

Highway Planning and Construction 

lowa Department of Transportation 
Traffic Safety Bureau 

Alcohol Incentive Grant 20.605 PAP-09-410,Task 14 10,372 
Intoxicated Persons Program PAP 10-410,Task 11 

U.S. Department of Education 
Department of Transportation 

ARRA-State Fiscal Stabilization Funds (SFSF)-Government 
Services, Recovery Act 84.397 S397A090016A 114,225 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
lowa Department of Elder Affairs 

Retired Area Agency on Aging 
Special Programs for the Aging -Title I11 

Part B -Medication Management 93.044 
Part D - Grants for Supportive Services & Senior Centers 93.043 
Part E - Homemaker 93.052 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Agency or 
CFDA Pass-Through Program 

GrantorlProgram Number Number Expenditures 

Iowa Department of Public Health 
Public Health Emergency Preparedness & Response 93.069 5880BT17 168,270 
Healthy Homes Assessment and Outreach 93.240 5880HH01 3,704 
Immunization Action Plan 93.268 5889I410158801414 33,784 
Breast & Cervical Cancer Prevention 93.283 5889NB0715880NB07 22,671 
Immunization Action Plan 93.712 58801414 6,904 
HIV Counseling, Testing & Referral 93.940 5889AP0415880AP04 3,472 
HIV Counseling, Testing & Referral 93.911 5889AP0415880AP04 1,923 

Iowa Department of Human Services 
Human Services Administrative Reimbursement 

Temporary Assistance to Needy Families 
Child Care Mandatory & Matching Funds of the C 

Development Fund 
Foster Care Title IV-E 
Adoption Assistance 
Refugee 
Medical Assistance Program 
Children's Health Insurance Program 
Social Services Block Grant 

Child Care and Development Block Grant 
ARRA-Child Care and Development Block Grant 

93.558 
:hild Care & 

93.596 
93.658 
93.659 
93.566 
93.778 
93.767 
93.667 
93.575 
93.713 

U S Department of Health and Human Sewlces 
Iowa Secretary of State 

Votlng Access to Indlvlduals \nth D~sabll l t~es - Grants to States 93 71 6 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Iowa Homeland Security & Emergency Management Division 

Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 41,578 
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2006-GE-T6-0065-002 32,419 
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2006-GE-T6-0065-007 130,329 
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2007-GE-T7-0032-002 275,826 
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2008-GE-T8-2008 194,033 

632,607 

Total Indirect 

Total 

Basis of Presentation - The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Cerro Gordo 
County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information on this schedule is presented in 
accordance wlth the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orpanizations. 
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation, of the 
basic financial statements. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Certified Public Accountants 
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ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS 

To thc Offic~als of Cerro Gordo County 
Mason City, Iowa 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the husiness-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Cerro Gordo County, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, 
which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements listed in the table of contents and have issued our report 
thereon dated December 22, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Cerro Gordo County's internal control over financial reporting as a basis 
for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Ceno Gordo County's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Cerro Gordo County's intemal control over financial 
reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal conhol over financial reporting that might he significant deficiencies 
or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material wealmess 
have been identified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified 
certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting we consider to be material weaknesses and other deficiencies we 
consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of the control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility a 

as item Il-A-10 to he a mater~al weakness 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control which is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency described in 
Part 11 of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item II-B-10 to be a significant deficiency. 

Coin~liance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Cerro Gordo County's financial statements arc free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance that are required to he reported 
under Government Auditine Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of non-compliance or other matters that 
are described in Part IV of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the County's operations for the year ended June 30, 2010 are based 
exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit of the financial statements of the County. Since 
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our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily 
audited. The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those 
statues. 

Cerro Gordo County's responses to findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs. While we have expressed our conclusions on the County's responses, we did not audit Cerro Gordo County's 
responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees and citizens of 
Cerro Gordo County and other parties to whom Cerro Gordo County may report including federal awarding agencies and pass- 
through entities. This repofi is not intended to he and should not he used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of Cerro Gordo County during the 
course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them 
with you at your convenience. 

December 22,2010 



momen 
Certified Public Accountants 

CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Offlclals of Cerro Gordo County 
Mason City, Jowa 

Comoliance 

We have audited the compliance of Cerso Gordo County, Iowa, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. Cerro Gordo County's major federal programs are identified in Part 1 of the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of Cerro Gordo County's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on Cerro Gordo County's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Oreanizations. Those standards and OMB 
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Cerso Gordo County's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Cerro Gordo County's 
compliance with those requirements. 

In our oplmon Ceno Gordo County compl~ed, ID all materral respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable 
to its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Cerro Gordo County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements applicable to federal programs. In planning 
and performing our audit, we considered Cerro Gordo County's intemal control over compliance with requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in accordance with OMB 
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented of detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. 
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A significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies as defined above. 

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees and citizens of 
Cerro Gordo County and other parties to whom Cerro Gordo County may report, including federal awarding agencies and pass- 
through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

December 22.2010 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Par t  1: Summaw of the Indeuendent Auditors' Results: 

a Unqualified opinions were issued on the financial statements 

b Significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in ~ntemal control over financial reporting were disclosed by the audit of 
the financ~al statements 

c. The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial statements 

d. An unqualified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to the major programs. 

e. The audit disclosed no audit findings which were required to be reported in accordance with Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Section .510(a). 

f. The major programs were as follows: 

. CFDA Number 14 228 - Jumpstart Disaster Recovery Housing Program and Disaster Buslness Rental Assistance 
Program and 16 803 - Iowa/Byme-Justice Ass~stance Grant (JAG) ProgrdARRA 

g The dollar threshold uscd to d~stinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000 

h Cerro Gordo County did not qualify as alow-rrsk audrtee 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Part 11: Findines Related to the Financial Statements: 

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES: 

II-A-I0 Segregation of DutiesDuring our review of internal conhol, the existing procedures are evaluated in order to 
determine that incompatible duties, from a control standpoint, are not performed by the same employee. This 
segregation of duties helps to prevent losses from employee error or dishonesty and, therefore, maximizes the accuracy 
of the County's financial statements. 

Recommendation-We realize that with a limited number of office employees, segregation of duties is difficult. 
However, each County official should review the operating procedures of their office to obtain the maximum internal 
control possible under the circumstances. 

Response--We have reviewed procedures and plan to make the necessary changes to improve internal control. 
Specifically, the custody, record-keeping and reconciling functions currently performed by the Deputy will he separated 
and spread among the County Official, Deputy and Clerks. We plan to implement these changes as soon as possible. 

Conclusion-Response accepted. 

II-B-I0 Financial Reporting-During the year ended June 30, 2010, the County was advanced $168,750 on the Local Option 
Sales and Services Taxes Revenue Bond which was issued in 2009. No proceeds were recorded on the County records 
since the proceeds were delivered directly to the Clear Lake Dredging and Restoration Project. Adjustments were 
subsequently made by the County to properly include this amount in the financial statements. 

Recommendation-The County should implement procedures to ensure all debt issuances are identified and included 
in the County's financial statements. 

Resuons+We will revise our current procedures to ensure the proper amounts are recorded in the financial statements 
in the future. 

Conclusion-Response accepted. 

INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE: 

No matters were reported. 

Part 111: Findines and Ouestioned Costs for Federal Awards: 

INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLIANCE: 

No matters were reported. 

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES: 

No matters were reported. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
Schedule of Findlngs and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Re~orting: 

IV-A-10 Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2010 exceeded the amounts budgeted in the 
Administration, Non-Program and Debt Service functions. 

Recommendation - The budget should have been amended in accordance with Chapter 331.435 of the Code of Iowa 
before disbursements were allowed to exceed the budget. 

Response - We will amend the budget when required and the expenditures will be watched more closely by the 
departments. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

IV-B-I0 Questionable Disbursements - Certain expenditures we believe may not meet the requirements of public purpose as 
defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated April 25, 1979 since the public benefits to be derived have not been 
clearly documented were noted. These expenditures are detailed as follows: 

Paid To Purpose Amount 
HvVee Food 

Four invoices for Public Health Refreshments for various meetings $230 
Three invoices for Conservation Food for various programs 2,752 
One invoice for Administration Food for Township Trustees meeting 37 

HyVee Foods Stores West 
Two invoices for Conservation Food for Various Day Events 407 

Decker Sporting Goods 
Conservation Shirts for Event 84 

Trophies Unlimited 
One invoice for Sherill's Office Plaaue for Communitv Motors 3 1 

P~zza Hut 
One lnvolce for Publ~c Health Food for HlNl Clnnc 93 

Rib Crib 
One invoice for Public Health Food for Meeting 51 - 

Top Line Catering 
Six invoices for Public Health Lunch for Board of Health Meeting 408 

Godfather's Pizza 
One invoice for Sheriffs Off~ce Food for Citizens Police Academy meeting 84 

Fareway Stores 
One invoice for Conservation Food for Various Day Events 10 
One invoice for Sheriffs Office Food for Various Day Events 60 

According to the opinion, it is possible for certain expenditures to meet the test of serving a public purpose under 
certain circumstances, although such items will certainly be subject to a deserved close scrutiny. The line to be drawn 
between a proper and an improper purpose is very thin. 

Recommendation - The Board of Supervisors should determine and document the public purpose served by these 
expenditures before authorizing any further payments. If this practice is continued, the County should establish written 
policies and procedures, including requirements for proper documentation. 

Response - Sheriff - As recommended, a policy will be implemented as soon as possible. 
Conservation - The expenses were part of the the Lime Creek Nature Center, which is funded by 
donations and registration fees that are used to fund activities and programs. As recommended, a policy 
will be implemented as soon as possible. 
Public Health - The expenses were proper and were either part of a long standing practice of providing 
meals to the Board of Health, funded by a grant, or part of a program that is funded through registration 
fees. As recommended, a policy will be implemented as soon as possible. 
Administration - As recommended, a policy will be implemented as soon as possible. 

Conclusion - Response accepted 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
Schedule uf Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

IV-C-I0 Travel Expense - No expenditures of County money for travel expenses of spouses of County officials or employees 
were noted. 

IV-D-I0 Business Transactions - The following business transactions between the County and County officials or employees 
were noted: 

Name, Title and Business Connection Transaction Amount 
Tracie Siemers, Auditor's Office 

Steve Siemers, Spouse Snow removal and trailer rental $ 1.413 
Brock specialtie;, Adam Brock, Tracie's Brother in law Auditor's Office Remodeling 2,712 
Linda Weatherwax. Tracie's Mother Election Worker 152 ~ ~ - - ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  ~ ~ 

Kenneth Kline, County Auditor 
Shielah Handt, Mother in Law Election Worker 26 
Willis Handt, Father in Law Election Worker 41 
Jason Kline, Son Computer Services 910 

Deb Perzynski, MIS 
Felicia Perzynski, Daughter Computer Services 450 

Shelly Tuttle, Secondary Road 
Mark's Air & Water Technologies, Mark Tuttle, Spouse 4 air purifiers 3,051 

Jodi Draper, CPC Department 
Ken Draper, Spouse Client Moving Expenses 750 

Barb Sowder, Auditor's Office 
Terri Gretillat, Sister Election Worker 157 

Jaclyn Smith, Treasurer's Office 
V&K Lawn, Chad Valvoda, Brother Lawn Services 45 

In accordance with Chapter 331.342 of the Code of Iowa, the transactions with Steve Siemers, Shielah and Willis 
Handt, Jason Kline, Felicia Perzynski, Ken Draper, Terri Gretillat, Chad Valvoda and Linda Weatherwax do not appear 
to represent conflicts of interest since total transactions were less than $1,500 during the fiscal year. 

In accordance with Chapter 331.342 of the Code of Iowa, the transaction over $1,500 during the year with Mark's Air 
& Water Technologies, owned by Mark Tuttle, does not appear to represent a conflict of mterest because Shelly Tunle 
does not participate in acquiring these services. 

In accordance with Chapter 331.342 of the Code of Iowa, the transaction over $1,500 during the fiscal year with Brock 
Specialties, owned by Adam Brock, may appear to represent a conflict of interest because it was not competitively hid 
and Tracie Seimers appears to have been involved in acquiring the services. 

Recommendation - The County should refrain from conducting business with related parties. The County should 
consult legal counsel to determine the disposition of this matter. 

Response - We will refrain from conducting business with related parties when possible 

Conclusion - Response acknowledged 

IV-E-I0 Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of County officials and employees is in accordance with statutory provisions. 
The amount of all bonds should be periodically reviewed to ensure that the coverage is adequate for current 
operations. 

IV-F-I0 Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the Board minutes hut were 
not. 

IV-G-I0 Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investment provisions of Chapter 
12B and l2C of the Code of Iowa and the County's Investment Policy were noted. 



CERRO GORDO COUNTY, IOWA 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

IV-H-10 Resource Enhancement and Protection Certification - The County properly dedicated property tax revenue to 
conservation purposes as required by Chapter 455A.I9(l)(b) of the Code of Iowa in order to receive the additional 
REAP funds allocated in accordance with subsections (b)(2) and (b)(3). 

1V-I-IOEconomic Development - During the year ended June 30, 2010, the County paid $ 275,350 for Economic 
Development, which appears to be an appropriate expenditure of public funds since the public benefits to be derived 
have been clearly documented. 

IV-J-I 0 Grant Activity - The County complied with grant regulations; no violations were noted. 

IV-K-I0 County Extension Office - The County Extension Office is operated under the authority of Chapter 176A of the Code 
of Iowa and serves as an agency of the State of Iowa. This fund is administered by an extension council separate and 
distinct from County operations. Disbursements for the County Extension Office during the year ended June 30, 2010, 
did not exceed the amount budgeted. 

IV-L-10 Financial Position - We noted that the Special Revenue Fund Mental Health had a deficit fund balance of $20,262 at 
June 30,2010. 

Recommendation - The County should investigate alternatives to eliminate this deficit 

Response - We will monitor the fund balance more closely in the future 

Conclusion -Response accepted 



This page was left blank intentionally. 


